
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

HENDON AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

THURSDAY 17TH SEPTEMBER, 2015 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4AX 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF HENDON AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Cllr Maureen Braun 
Vice Chairman: Cllr Brian Gordon 
 
 

 
Claire Farrier 
 

Sury Khatri 
Hugh Rayner 
 

Gill Sargeant 
Agnes Slocombe 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Mark Shooter 
Val Duschinsky 

Helena Hart 
Dr Devra Kay 

Charlie O’Macaulay 
Zakia Zubairi 
Tom Davey 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Service contact: Kirstin Lambert kirstin.lambert@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 2177 

 
Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   MINUTES  
 

1 - 4 

2.   ABSENCE OF MEMBERS (IF ANY)  
 

 

3.   DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS AND NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS (IF ANY)  
 

 

4.   PUBLIC QUESTION AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)  
 

 

5.   MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY)  
 

 

6.   REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)  
 

 

 Hale Ward  
 

 

 

7.   1 Langley Park London  NW7 2AA - 15/04278/HSE  
 

5 - 18 

 Mill Hill Ward  
 

 

 

8.   66 Uphill Road London NW7 4PU - 5/04704/FUL  
 

19 - 28 

 West Hendon Ward  
 

 

 

9.   117-125 West Hendon Broadway London NW9 7BP - 
15/00750/FUL  
 

29 - 56 

10.   42 Sevington Road London NW4 3RX - 15/04283/HSE  
 

57 - 64 

11.   36 Woolmead Avenue London NW9 7AY - 15/04227/HSE  
 

65 - 72 

12.   71 Vivian Avenue London NW4 3XE - 15/03894/FUL  
 

73 - 80 

 Reports of the Assistant Director of Development 
Management and Building Control  
 

 

 

13.   Any Item(s) the Chairman decides are urgent   



 
 
 

 

    

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Kirstin Lambert 
kirstin.lambert@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 2177.  People with hearing difficulties who have a 
text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee 
Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Decisions of the Hendon Area Planning Committee 

 
27 July 2015 

 
Members Present:- 

 
Councillor Maureen Braun (Chairman) 

Councillor Brian Gordon (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor Claire Farrier 
Councillor Sury Khatri 
Councillor Hugh Rayner 
 

Councillor Gill Sargeant 
Councillor Agnes Slocombe 
 

 
 

1. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 June 2015 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 

3. DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 
NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS (IF ANY)  
 
  

Member Agenda Item Interest declared 

Councillor 
Khatri 

Item 7- 6 Wentworth 
Hall The Ridgeway 
London NW7 1RJ  

Non-pecuniary interest as one of the speakers
has contacted Councillor Khatri. 

Councillor 
Farrier 

Item 9 - 1 Rectory 
Lane Edgware HA8 
7LF  

Non-pecuniary interest as the applicant has
contacted Councillor Farrier. 

Councillor 
Sargeant 

Item 9 - 1 Rectory 
Lane Edgware HA8 
7LF  

Non-pecuniary interest as one applicant has
contacted Councillor Sargeant. 

 
 

4. REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)  
 
There was none. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTION AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 

6. MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY)  
 
There were none. 
 

7. 6 WENTWORTH HALL THE RIDGEWAY LONDON NW7 1RJ  - 15/02767/HSE  

AGENDA ITEM 1

1



 

2 

 
The Committee having heard oral objections from Mr David Rose and Mr Ashraf Michail; 
 
RESOLVED TO APPROVE the application as per the Officer’s report and subject to the 
conditions and informative set out in the report. 
 
Votes were recorded as follows: 
 
In favour: 5 
Against: 0 
Abstentions: 2 
 

8. 18 BIRKBECK ROAD LONDON NW7 4AA   - 15/02994/HSE  
 
The Committee; 
 
RESOLVED TO APPROVE the application as per the Officer’s report and subject to the 
conditions and informative set out in the report. 
 
Votes were recorded as follows: 
 
In favour: 7 
Against: 0 
Abstentions: 0 
 

9. 1 RECTORY LANE EDGWARE HA8 7LF  - 15/02839/OUT  
 
The Committee having heard from the applicant’s representative 
 
RESOLVED TO REFUSE the application as per the Officer’s recommendations in the 
report. 
 
Votes were recorded as follows: 
 
In favour: 4 
Against: 3 
Abstentions: 0 
 

10. 76 VIVIAN AVENUE LONDON NW4 3XG   - 15/02273/FUL  
 
The Committee  
 
RESOLVED TO APPROVE the application as per the Officer’s report and subject to the 
conditions and informative set out in the report and the following informative: 
 

• The applicant is advised that any future extensions proposed at this property, are 
unlikely to be considered favourably by the Council. 

 
Votes were recorded as follows: 
 
In favour: 7 
Against: 0 
Abstentions: 0 

2



 

3 

 
11. 229-231 HALE LANE EDGWARE HA8 9QF   - 15/02579/FUL  

 
The Committee having heard oral objections from Mr Ian Pearl and Ms Michelle Zimber 
and a response from the applicant agent; 
 
RESOLVED TO REFUSE the application as per the Officer’s recommendations in the 
report and the addendum.  
 
Votes were recorded as follows: 
 
In favour: 6 
Against: 0 
Abstentions: 1 
 

12. LAND TO THE REAR OF 51 FINCHLEY LANE LONDON NW4 1BY - 
15/02221/FUL  
 
The Committee having heard oral objections from Mrs Doris Purdy and Mr Howard 
Lederman and a response from the applicant agent 
 
RESOLVED TO APPROVE the application as per the Officer’s report and subject to the 
conditions and informative set out in the report. 
 
Votes were recorded as follows: 
 
In favour: 6 
Against: 0 
Abstentions: 1 
 

13. ANY ITEM(S) THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 
There were none. 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 9.10 pm 
 
 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



!"#$%&"' ()!$'*+,-).$/0)!"'1"')234)566)))

7,8,/,'#,9 (:;<=54>;?@A !"#"$%"&' ()*+,-./+0123

4##"5)"&' 6)*+,-./+0123

789&' :8." ;<5$9/ =9&+>"5)"?@"9+0123

455.$#8A)' B9+B8<+C9""A

D9E5EF8.'

;<#8%8)$EA+EG+F$)"+)E+G8#$.$)8)"+A"H+@8F"?"A)+."%".+H$)*+=+AEI+.$J*)KH"..F+)E+

G9EA)+8A&+F$&"I+L"?E.$)$EA+EG+"<$F)$AJ+F$AJ."+F)E9"/+F$&"+"<)"AF$EA+8A&+

"9"#)$EA+EG+F$AJ."+F)E9"/+9"89+"<)"AF$EAI

7,#"BB,'1$%&"'9)4559E%"+F-@M"#)+)E+#EA&$)$EAF

+2 N*"+ &"%".E5?"A)+ *"9"@/+ 5"9?$))"&+ F*8..+ @"+ #899$"&+ E-)+ $A+ 8##E9&8A#"+ H$)*+ )*"+
GE..EH$AJ+8559E%"&+5.8AF'
K+OPC;QK;112+R;ST>NTPC+U!VPN+;O;W4NTVPX+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;QK;110+R;ST>NTPC+!;4!+;O;W4NTVPX+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;QK;11=+R;ST>NTPC+>TL;+;O;W4NTVPX+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;QK;Z12+RD!VDV>;L+U!VPN+;O;W4NTVPX+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;QK;Z10+!;W+4+RD!VDV>;L+!;4!+;O;W4NTVPX+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;QK;Z1=+RD!VDV>;L+>TL;+;O;W4NTVPX+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;QKO111+R>TN;+OV[4NTVP+B4DX+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;QKO112+R;ST>NTPC+>TN;+DO4PX+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;Q\OZ12]+R>$)"+5.8AX+!"%$F$EA+[+L8)"&+4-J-F)+0123
K+OPC;QKD112+R;ST>NTPC+C!VYPL+UOVV!+DO4PX+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;QKD110+R;ST>NTPC+UT!>N+UOVV!+DO4PX+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;QKD11=+R;ST>NTPC+OVUN+DO4PX+L4N;L+,YO+0123+
K+OPC;QKD11Z+R;ST>NTPC+!VVU+DO4PX+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;Q\DZ11]+RD9E5EF"&+]8F"?"A)+D.8AX+!"%+]
K+OPC;Q\DZ12]+RD9E5EF"&+C9E-A&+U.EE9X+!"%+]
K+OPC;Q\DZ10]+RD9E5EF"&+!EEG+5.8AX+!"%+]
K+OPC;QK>112+R;ST>NTPC+>;[NTVP+44X+L4N;L+,YO+0123
K+OPC;Q\>Z12]+RD9E5EF"&+>"#)$EA+44X+!"%+]+
K+L;>TCP+4PL+4[[;>>+>N4N;B;PN+L4N;L+,YOQ+0123
K+DO4PPTPC+>N4N;B;PN+L4N;L+,YOQ+0123

AGENDA ITEM 7

5



!"8FEA'+UE9+)*"+8%E$&8A#"+EG+&E-@)+8A&+$A+)*"+$A)"9"F)F+EG+59E5"9+5.8AA$AJ+8A&+FE+
8F+)E+"AF-9"+)*8)+)*"+&"%".E5?"A)+$F+#899$"&+E-)+G-../+$A+8##E9&8A#"+H$)*+)*"+5.8AF+
8F+8FF"FF"&+$A+8##E9&8A#"+H$)*+DE.$#$"F+[>+PDDU+8A&+[>2+EG+)*"+OE#8.+D.8A+[E9"+
>)98)"J/+ LDL+ R8&E5)"&+ >"5)"?@"9+ 0120X+ 8A&+ DE.$#/+ LB12+ EG+ )*"+ OE#8.+ D.8A+
L"%".E5?"A)+B8A8J"?"A)+DE.$#$"F+LDL+R8&E5)"&+>"5)"?@"9+0120XI

+0 N*$F+ &"%".E5?"A)+ ?-F)+ @"+ @"J-A+ H$)*$A+ )*9""+ /"89F+ G9E?+ )*"+ &8)"+ EG+ )*$F+
5"9?$FF$EAI

!"8FEA'+NE+#E?5./+H$)*+>"#)$EA+32+EG+)*"+D.8AA$AJ+8A&+[E?5-.FE9/+D-9#*8F"+4#)+
011ZI

+= N*"+?8)"9$8.F+)E+@"+-F"&+$A+)*"+"<)"9A8.+F-9G8#"F+EG+)*"+@-$.&$AJ+F*8..+?8)#*+)*EF"+
-F"&+$A+)*"+"<$F)$AJ+@-$.&$AJI

!"8FEA'+NE+F8G"J-89&+)*"+%$F-8.+8?"A$)$"F+EG+)*"+@-$.&$AJ+8A&+F-99E-A&$AJ+89"8+$A+
8##E9&8A#"+ H$)*+ DE.$#/+ LB12+ EG+ )*"+ L"%".E5?"A)+ B8A8J"?"A)+ DE.$#$"F+ LDL+
R8&E5)"&+>"5)"?@"9+0120X+8A&+DE.$#$"F+[>+PDDU+8A&+[>2+EG+)*"+OE#8.+D.8A+[E9"+
>)98)"J/+R8&E5)"&+>"5)"?@"9+0120XI

+Z N*"+ -F"+ EG+ )*"+ "<)"AF$EA+ 8A&+ @8F"?"A)+ *"9"@/+ 5"9?$))"&+ F*8..+ 8)+ 8..+ )$?"F+ @"+
8A#$..89/+)E+8A&+E##-5$"&+$A+#EAM-A#)$EA+H$)*+)*"+?8$A+@-$.&$AJ+8A&+F*8..+AE)+8)+8A/+
)$?"+@"+E##-5$"&+8F+8+F"5898)"+-A$)+E9+&H"..$AJI

!"8FEA'+NE+"AF-9"+ )*8)+ )*"+ &"%".E5?"A)+ &E"F+AE)+ 59"M-&$#"+ )*"+ #*898#)"9+ EG+ )*"+
.E#8.$)/+ 8A&+ )*"+ 8?"A$)$"F+ EG+ E##-5$"9F+ EG+ 8&ME$A$AJ+ 9"F$&"A)$8.+ 59E5"9)$"F+ $A+
8##E9&8A#"+ H$)*+ DE.$#/+ LB12+ EG+ )*"+ L"%".E5?"A)+ B8A8J"?"A)+ DE.$#$"F+ LDL+
R8&E5)"&+>"5)"?@"9+0120XI

+3 N*"+9EEG+EG+)*"+"<)"AF$EA+*"9"@/+5"9?$))"&+F*8..+EA./+@"+-F"&+$A+#EAA"#)$EA+H$)*+)*"+
9"58$9+8A&+?8$A)"A8A#"+EG+)*"+@-$.&$AJ+8A&+F*8..+8)+AE+)$?"+@"+#EA%"9)"&+)E+E9+-F"&+
8F+8+@8.#EA/^+9EEG+J89&"A+E9+F$?$.89+8?"A$)/+E9+F$))$AJ+E-)+89"8I

!"8FEA'+NE+"AF-9"+ )*8)+ )*"+8?"A$)$"F+EG+ )*"+E##-5$"9F+EG+8&ME$A$AJ+59E5"9)$"F+89"+
AE)+59"M-&$#"&+@/+E%"9.EE_$AJ+$A+8##E9&8A#"+H$)*+5E.$#/+LB12+EG+)*"+L"%".E5?"A)+
B8A8J"?"A)+DE.$#$"F+LDL+R8&E5)"&+>"5)"?@"9+0120XI

+` 8X+ PE+ &"%".E5?"A)+ E9+ F$)"+ HE9_F+ F*8..+ )8_"+ 5.8#"+ EA+ F$)"+ -A)$.+ 8+ aL"?E.$)$EA+ b+
[EAF)9-#)$EA+B")*E&+>)8)"?"A)a+*8F+@""A+F-@?$))"&+)E+8A&+8559E%"&+$A+H9$)$AJ+@/^+
)*"+OE#8.+D.8AA$AJ+4-)*E9$)/I

N*"+>)8)"?"A)+F*8..+59E%$&"+GE9'+8##"FF+)E+)*"+F$)"c+)*"+589_$AJ+EG+%"*$#."F+GE9+F$)"+
E5"98)$%"F+ 8A&+ %$F$)E9Fc+ *E-9F+ EG+ #EAF)9-#)$EA^+ $A#.-&$AJ+ &".$%"9$"F^+ .E8&$AJ+ 8A&+
-A.E8&$AJ+ EG+ 5.8A)+ 8A&+ ?8)"9$8.Fc+ )*"+ F)E98J"+ EG+ 5.8A)+ 8A&+ ?8)"9$8.F+ -F"&+ $A+ )*"+
#EAF)9-#)$EA+EG+)*"+&"%".E5?"A)c+)*"+"9"#)$EA+EG+8A/+?"8AF+EG+)"?5E989/+"A#.EF-9"+
E9+F"#-9$)/+*E89&$AJ+8A&+?"8F-9"F+ )E+59"%"A)+?-&+8A&+&"@9$F+@"$AJ+#899$"&+EA+)E+
)*"+5-@.$#+*$J*H8/+8A&+H8/F+)E+?$A$?$F"+5E..-)$EAI

@X+ N*"+ &"%".E5?"A)+ F*8..+ )*"9"8G)"9+ @"+ $?5."?"A)"&+ $A+ 8##E9&8A#"+ H$)*+ )*"+
?"8F-9"F+&")8$."&+H$)*$A+)*"+F)8)"?"A)I

!"8FEA'+TA+)*"+$A)"9"F)F+EG+*$J*H8/+F8G")/+8A&+JEE&+8$9+d-8.$)/+$A+8##E9&8A#"+H$)*+
DE.$#$"F+LB1Z+8A&+LB2e+EG+)*"+L"%".E5?"A)+B8A8J"?"A)+DE.$#$"F+LDL+R8&E5)"&+

6



>"5)"?@"9+ 0120X^+ )*"+ >-F)8$A8@."+ L"F$JA+ 8A&+ [EAF)9-#)$EA+ >DL+ R8&E5)"&+ 459$.+
012=X+8A&+DE.$#/+3I02+EG+)*"+OEA&EA+D.8A+R0122XI

+e 8X+ ]"GE9"+ )*"+ &"%".E5?"A)+ *"9"@/+ 5"9?$))"&+ $F+ G$9F)+ E##-5$"&^+ &")8$.F+ EG+ .$J*)H"..+
#E%"9$AJF+)E+@"+$AF)8.."&+F*8..+@"+F-@?$))"&+)E+8A&+8559E%"&+$A+H9$)$AJ+@/+)*"+OE#8.+
D.8AA$AJ+4-)*E9$)/I

@X+N*"+F#9""AF+F*8..+@"+$AF)8.."&+$A+8##E9&8A#"+H$)*+)*"+&")8$.F+8559E%"&+-A&"9+)*$F+
#EA&$)$EA+ @"GE9"+ G$9F)+ E##-58)$EA+ E9+ )*"+ -F"+ $F+ #E??"A#"&+ 8A&+ 9")8$A"&+ 8F+ F-#*+
)*"9"8G)"9I

!"8FEA'+NE+"AF-9"+ )*8)+ )*"+ &"%".E5?"A)+ &E"F+AE)+ 59"M-&$#"+ )*"+ #*898#)"9+ EG+ )*"+
89"8+$A+8##E9&8A#"+H$)*+5E.$#$"F+LB12+8A&+LB10+EG+)*"+L"%".E5?"A)+B8A8J"?"A)+
DE.$#$"F+ LDL+ R8&E5)"&+ >"5)"?@"9+ 0120X^+ )*"+ !"F$&"A)$8.+ L"F$JA+ C-$&8A#"+ >DL+
R8&E5)"&+459$.+012=X+8A&+ )*"+>-F)8$A8@."+L"F$JA+8A&+[EAF)9-#)$EA+>DL+ R8&E5)"&+
459$.+012=XI

+( N*"+ 59"?$F"F+ F*8..+ @"+ -F"&+ GE9+ 8+ F$AJ."+ G8?$./+ &H"..$AJ*E-F"+ R[=R8XX+ 8A&+ GE9+ AE+
E)*"9+ 5-95EF"+ R$A#.-&$AJ+ 8A/+ E)*"9+ 5-95EF"+ $A+ [.8FF+ [=+ EG+ )*"+ >#*"&-."+ )E+ )*"+
NEHA+ 8A&+ [E-A)9/+ D.8AA$AJ+ RYF"+ [.8FF"FX+ V9&"9^+ 26(e^+ E9+ $A+ 8A/+ 59E%$F$EA+
"d-$%8."A)+ )E+ )*8)+[.8FF+ $A+ 8A/+ F)8)-)E9/+ $AF)9-?"A)+ 9"%E_$AJ+8A&+ 9"K"A8#)$AJ+ )*8)+
V9&"9+H$)*+E9+H$)*E-)+?E&$G$#8)$EAXI

!"8FEA'+NE+"A8@."+ )*"+OE#8.+D.8AA$AJ+4-)*E9$)/+ )E+"<"9#$F"+#EA)9E.+EG+ )*"+ )/5"+EG+
-F"+H$)*$A+)*"+#8)"JE9/+$A+E9&"9+)E+F8G"J-89&+)*"+8?"A$)$"F+EG+)*"+89"8I

C'8"/B$%&D,EFG9

+2 TA+ 8##E9&8A#"+ H$)*+ 5898J985*F+ 2(`+ 8A&+ 2(e+ EG+ )*"+ PDDU^+ )*"+ OE#8.+ D.8AA$AJ+
4-)*E9$)/+ROD4X+)8_"F+8+5EF$)$%"+8A&+59E8#)$%"+8559E8#*+)E+&"%".E5?"A)+59E5EF8.F^+
GE#-F"&+EA+FE.-)$EAFI+N*"+OD4+*8F+59E&-#"&+5.8AA$AJ+5E.$#$"F+8A&+H9$))"A+J-$&8A#"+
)E+ 8FF$F)+ 855.$#8A)F+ H*"A+ F-@?$))$AJ+ 855.$#8)$EAFI+ N*"F"+ 89"+ 8..+ 8%8$.8@."+ EA+ )*"+
[E-A#$.aF+ H"@F$)"I+ N*"+ OD4+ *8F+ A"JE)$8)"&+ H$)*+ )*"+ 855.$#8A)f8J"A)+ H*"9"+
A"#"FF89/+&-9$AJ+)*"+855.$#8)$EA+59E#"FF+)E+"AF-9"+)*8)+)*"+59E5EF"&+&"%".E5?"A)+
$F+$A+8##E9&8A#"+H$)*+)*"+L"%".E5?"A)+D.8AI

+0 N*"+855.$#8A)+$F+8&%$F"&+)*8)+."J8.+#*8AJ"F+-A&"9+N*"+78)"9+TA&-F)9/+R>#*"?"+GE9+
)*"+4&E5)$EA+EG+D9$%8)"+>"H"9FX+!"J-.8)$EAF+0122+?"8A+)*8)+)*"+F"#)$EAF+EG+5$5"F+
/E-+F*89"+H$)*+/E-9+A"$J*@E-9F^+E9+89"+F$)-8)"&+E-)F$&"+EG+/E-9+59E5"9)/+@E-A&89/+
H*$#*+#EAA"#)+ )E+8+5-@.$#+F"H"9+89"+ .$_"./+ )E+*8%"+ )98AFG"99"&+ )E+N*8?"F+78)"9aF+
EHA"9F*$5I+>*E-.&+/E-9+59E5EF"&+@-$.&$AJ+HE9_+G8..+H$)*$A+=+?")9"F+EG+)*"F"+5$5"F^+
H"+ 9"#E??"A&+ /E-+ #EA)8#)+ N*8?"F+78)"9+ )E+ &$F#-FF+ )*"$9+ F)8)-F+ $A+?E9"+ &")8$.+
8A&+)E+&")"9?$A"+$G+8+@-$.&$AJ+E%"9fA"89K)E+8J9""?"A)+$F+9"d-$9"&I+QE-+#8A+#EA)8#)+
N*8?"F+ 78)"9+ EA+ 1(Z3+ (31+ 0eee+ E9+ GE9+ ?E9"+ $AGE9?8)$EA+ 5."8F"+ %$F$)+
HHHI)*8?"FH8)"9I#EI-_I

7



+= N*"+855.$#8A)+ $F+8&%$F"&+ )*8)+ $)+ $F+ )*"$9+ 9"F5EAF$@$.$)/+ )E+?8_"+59E5"9+59E%$F$EA+ GE9+
&98$A8J"+)E+J9E-A&^+H8)"9+#E-9F"F+E9+8+F-$)8@."+F"H"9I+TA+9"F5"#)+EG+F-9G8#"+H8)"9^+
$)+$F+9"#E??"A&"&+)*8)+)*"+855.$#8A)+F*E-.&+"AF-9"+)*8)+F)E9?+G.EHF+89"+8))"A-8)"&+
E9+9"J-.8)"&+$A)E+)*"+9"#"$%$AJ+5-@.$#+A")HE9_+)*9E-J*+EA+E9+EGGKF$)"+F)E98J"I+7*"A+$)+
$F+ 59E5EF"&+ )E+ #EAA"#)+ )E+ 8+ #E?@$A"&+ 5-@.$#+ F"H"9^+ )*"+ F$)"+ &98$A8J"+ F*E-.&+ @"+
F"5898)"+ 8A&+ #E?@$A"&+ 8)+ )*"+ G$A8.+ ?8A*E."+ A"89"F)+ )*"+ @E-A&89/I+ 7*"9"+ /E-+
59E5EF"+ )E+ &$F#*89J"+ )E+ 8+ 5-@.$#+ F"H"9^+ 59$E9+ 8559E%8.+ G9E?+ N*8?"F+ 78)"9+
L"%".E5"9+>"9%$#"F+H$..+@"+9"d-$9"&^+8A&+)*"/+#8A+@"+#EA)8#)"&+EA+1(11+116+=602I+
N*"+8@E%"+$F+$A+E9&"9+)E+"AF-9"+)*8)+)*"+F-9G8#"+H8)"9+&$F#*89J"+G9E?+)*"+F$)"+$F+AE)+
&")9$?"A)8.+)E+)*"+"<$F)$AJ+F"H"98J"+F/F)"?I

8



H88&#,/IF)6FF,FFB,'%

(J)@&%,)K,F#/&L%&"'

N*"+855.$#8)$EA+F$)"+#EA)8$AF+8+F"?$K&")8#*"&+&H"..$AJ+ .E#8)"&+EA+ )*"+#E9A"9+EG+O8AJ."/+
D89_+8A&+]-AAF+O8A"I+N*"+855.$#8A)+59E5"9)/+$F+AE)+.$F)"&+AE9+.E#8)"&+EA+.8A&+&"F$JA8)"&+
8F+49)$#."+0R=X+ R[EAF"9%8)$EA+49"8XI++ N*"9"+89"+AE+59E)"#)"&+ )9""F+EA+E9+8&M8#"A)+ )E+ )*"+
855.$#8)$EA+ F$)"I+ N*"9"+ "<$F)+ AE+ E-)F)8A&$AJ+ #EA&$)$EAF+ EA+ )*"+ 855.$#8A)+ 59E5"9)/+ H*$#*+
?$J*)+ .$?$)+&"%".E5?"A)I+N*"+855.$#8)$EA+59E5"9)/+F*89"F+8&ME$A$AJ+@E-A&89$"F+H$)*+PEI=+
O8AJ."/+D89_I+

N*"+ 855.$#8)$EA+ F$)"+ @"A"G$)F+ G9E?+ 8A+ "<$F)$AJ+ )HE+ F)E9"/+ F$&"+ "<)"AF$EA+ F-55E9)$AJ+ 8+
5$)#*"&+9EEG+8A&+8+9"89+&E9?"9+H$A&EHI+N*"+OE#8.+4-)*E9$)/aF+:$F)E9$#+?85F+$A&$#8)"+)*8)+
)*$F+ "<)"AF$EA+ *8F+ @""A+ $A+ "<$F)"A#"+ F$A#"+ 8)+ ."8F)+ 26=3I+ N*"+ F-@?$))"&+ 5.8AA$AJ+
F)8)"?"A)+#EA)8$AF+5*E)EJ985*F+F*EH$AJ+5.8AF+EG+ )*"F"+"."?"A)F+&8)"&+#$9#8+260eI+ T)+ $F+
)*"9"GE9"+ #EAF$&"9"&+ )*8)^+ EA+ )*"+ @8.8A#"+ EG+ 59E@8@$.$)/^+ )*"F"+ "<)"AF$EAF+ H"9"+ $A+
"<$F)"A#"+ 59$E9+ )E+ )*"+ 2F)+ EG+ ,-./+ 26Z(+ 8A&+ F*E-.&+ )*-F+ @"+ &""?"&+ 589)+ EG+ )*"+ E9$J$A8.+
&H"..$AJ*E-F"I

5J)@&%,)?&F%"/-

!"G"9"A#"'+23f1=63`f260
4&&9"FF'+2+O8AJ."/+D89_^+OEA&EA^+P7e+044
L"#$F$EA'+O8HG-.
L"#$F$EA+L8)"'+=1I1`I0123
L"F#9$5)$EA'+;9"#)$EA+EG+0+AEI+F$AJ."+F)E9"/+9"89+"<)"AF$EAF

!"G"9"A#"'+23f1=0Z(fDP:+
4&&9"FF'+2+O8AJ."/+D89_^+OEA&EA^+P7e+044
L"#$F$EA'+D9$E9+4559E%8.+PE)+!"d-$9"&
L"#$F$EA+L8)"'++00I1`I0123
L"F#9$5)$EA'+>$AJ."+F)E9"/+9"89+"<)"AF$EA+H$)*+8+59E5EF"&+&"5)*+EG+`+?")9"F+G9E?+E9$J$A8.+
9"89+H8..^+"8%"F+*"$J*)+EG+0I(+?")9"F+8A&+?8<$?-?+*"$J*)+EG+Z+?")9"F

!"G"9"A#"'+23f1=22(fDP:
4&&9"FF'+2+O8AJ."/+D89_^+OEA&EA^+P7e+044
L"#$F$EA'+D9$E9+4559E%8.+!"d-$9"&+8A&+!"G-F"&
L"#$F$EA+L8)"'++00I13I0123
L"F#9$5)$EA'+>$AJ."+F)E9"/+9"89+"<)"AF$EA+H$)*+8+59E5EF"&+&"5)*+EG+`+?")9"F+G9E?+E9$J$A8.+
9"89+H8..^+"8%"F+*"$J*)+EG+0I(+?")9"F+8A&+?8<$?-?+*"$J*)+EG+Z+?")9"F

!"G"9"A#"'+23f1=1(`f260
4&&9"FF'+2+O8AJ."/+D89_^+OEA&EA^+P7e+044
L"#$F$EA'+O8HG-.
L"#$F$EA+L8)"'++10I1`I0123
L"F#9$5)$EA'+ ;<)"AF$EA+ )E+ 9EEG+ $A#.-&$AJ+ *$5+ )E+ J8@."+ "A&^+ 9"89+ &E9?"9+H$A&EH+8A&+ =AEI+
9EEG.$J*)F+)E+G8#$.$)8)"+8+.EG)+#EA%"9F$EAI+>$AJ."+F)E9"/+9"89+E-)@-$.&$AJ

MJ)./"L"F$+

9



N*$F+ 855.$#8)$EA+ 59E5EF"F+ "<#8%8)$EA+ EG+ F$)"+ )E+ G8#$.$)8)"+ A"H+ @8F"?"A)+ ."%".+ H$)*+ =+ AEI+
.$J*)KH"..F+ )E+ G9EA)+ 8A&+ F$&"^+ )*"+ &"?E.$)$EA+ EG+ "<$F)$AJ+ F$AJ."+ F)E9"/+ F$&"+ "<)"AF$EA+ 8A&+
"9"#)$EA+EG+F$AJ."+F)E9"/+9"89+"<)"AF$EAI

N*"+ 59E5EF"&+ @8F"?"A)+ HE-.&+ GE..EH+ )*"+ G9EA)+ 8A&+ F$&"+ @-$.&$AJ+ .$A"+ EG+ )*"+ E9$J$A8.+
59E5"9)/+8A&+59EM"#)+=+?")9"F+G-9)*"9+9"89H89&+)*8A+)*"+E9$J$A8.+9"8.+@-$.&$AJ+.$A"I+TA+E9&"9+
)E+59E%$&"+A8)-98.+ .$J*)+ $A)E+ )*"+59E5EF"&+@8F"?"A)^+ )*9""+ .$J*)H"..F+89"+59E5EF"&+8.EAJ+
)*"+F$&"+8A&+9"#"FF"&+G9EA)+"."%8)$EA+EG+)*"+&H"..$AJI

N*"+59E5EF"&+F$AJ."+F)E9"/+9"89+"<)"AF$EA+HE-.&+"<)"A&+`+?")9"F+@"/EA&+)*"+E9$J$A8.+9"89+
"."%8)$EA+EG+ )*"+59E5"9)/+8.EAJ+)*"+F*89"&+@E-A&89/+H$)*+AEI=+O8AJ."/+D89_I+]"#8-F"+EG+
)*"+*$F)E9$#+"<)"AF$EAF^+)*"+9"89+@-$.&$AJ+.$A"+59EM"#)F+)E+)*"+;8F)+F$&"+EG+)*"+59E5"9)/I+N*"+
59E5EF"&+"<)"AF$EA+HE-.&+)*"9"GE9"+"<)"A&+ZI`3+?")9"F+@"/EA&+)*"+E9$J$A8.+9"89+"."%8)$EA+
EA+)*$F+F$&"I+N*"+59E5EF"&+F$AJ."+F)E9"/+9"89+"<)"AF$EA+HE-.&+F-55E9)+8+#9EHA+9EEG+H$)*+8A+
"8%"F+*"$J*)+EG+0I(+?")9"F^+8+?8<$?-?+*"$J*)+EG+Z+?")9"F+8A&+HE-.&+ G"8)-9"+AEI=+ G.-F*+
9EEG.$J*)F+EA+)*"+G.8)+F"#)$EA+EG+)*"+9EEGI

=J).NO+&#)P"'FN+%$%&"'

[EAF-.)8)$EA+ ."))"9F+ H"9"+ F"A)+ )E+ 2e+ A"$J*@E-9$AJ+ 59E5"9)$"F^+ 2(+ 9"F5EAF"F+ *8%"+ @""A+
9"#"$%"&+#E?59$F$AJ+2(+."))"9F+EG+E@M"#)$EA+$A#.-&$AJ+8+."))"9+EA+@"*8.G+EG+)*"+O8AJ."/+D89_+
!"F$&"A)F+4FFE#$8)$EAI

N*"+E@M"#)$EAF+9"#"$%"&+#8A+@"+F-??89$F"&+8F+GE..EHF'
K+!"F-.)$AJ+ F$g"+ EG+ 59E5EF"&+ &H"..$AJ+ -A#*898#)"9$F)$#+ GE9+ F"?$K&")8#*"&+ &H"..$AJ+ $A+ )*"+
.E#8.+89"8
K+[EA#"9A+9".8)$AJ+)E+.8#_+EG+589_$AJ+59E%$F$EA
K+[EA#"9A+E%"9+&$F9-5)$EA+)E+F-@FE$.^+&98$A8J"+8A&+GE-A&8)$EAF
K+4&&$)$EA8.+@8)*9EE?F+HE-.&+8GG"#)+H8)"9+59"FF-9"+$A+.E#8.+89"8
K+V%"9&"%".E5?"A)+EG+F$)"+
K+[EA#"9A+)*8)+)*"+59E5"9)/+HE-.&+@"+#EA%"9)"&+$A)E+"$)*"9+8+*EF)".+E9+G.8)F
K+V@M"#)$EA+)E+"<$F)$AJ+#EA%"9F$EAF+)E+:BVF+EA+)*"+F)9"")
K+L"%".E5?"A)+HE-.&+-A&"9?$A"+)*"+#*898#)"9+EG+)*"+E9$J$A8.+&H"..$AJ
K+4&&$)$EA8.+*8g89&F+)E+&9$%"9F+8A&+5"&"F)9$8AF+8)+)*"+M-A#)$EA
K+L9$%"H8/+EA)E+59E5"9)/+#EAF$&"9"&+&8AJ"9E-F+&-"+)E+59E<$?$)/+)E+M-A#)$EA
K+[EA#"9AF+E%"9+)*"+AE$F"+J"A"98)"&+G9E?+)*"+8&&$)$EA8.+*8@$)8@."+9EE?F
K+L$F#EA)"A)+E%"9+AE)+@"$AJ+#EAF-.)"&+GE9+59"%$E-F+855.$#8)$EAF
K+]8F"?"A)+&"%".E5?"A)+HE-.&+@"+8+59"#"&"A)+GE9+G-)-9"+&"%".E5?"A)
K+L$F#EA)"A)+E%"9+)*"+#EAF-.)8)$EA+59E#"FF+GE9+855.$#8)$EA
K+[EA#"9A+E%"9+)*"+A899EH+GEE)58)*+F-99E-A&$AJ+)*"+F$)"
K+ !"d-"F)+ GE9+ )HE+ 589_$AJ+ F58#"F+ )E+ @"+ 59E%$&"&+ EAF$)"+ 8.EAJF$&"+ 8+ #EA&$)$EA+ .$?$)$AJ+
589_$AJ+5"9?$)F+GE9+)*"+F$)"
K+N*"+$A)"9A8.+.8/E-)+HE-.&+$A&$#8)"+8+59E5"9)/+AE)+F-$)8@."+GE9+8+F$AJ."+G8?$./+&H"..$AJ

=J()C'%,/'$+;H%Q,/)P"'FN+%$%&"'
[E??"A)F+9"J89&$AJ+)*"+855.$#8)$EA+*8%"+@""A+9"#"$%"&+G9E?+N*8?"F+78)"9I+N*"/+8&%$F"+
)*8)+H*$.F)+)*"/+&E+AE)+E@M"#)+)E+)*"+F#*"?"'
K N*"+ EHA"9F*$5+ EG+ 5$5"+ H$)*$A+ E9+ #.EF"+ )E+ )*"+ F$)"+ ?8/+ *8%"+ @""A+ )98AFG"99"&+ )E+
N*8?"F+78)"9I
K T)+$F+)*"+9"F5EAF$@$.$)/+EG+)*"+855.$#8A)+)E+"AF-9"+)*8)+8&"d-8)"+&98$A8J"+$F+59E%$&"&+
EAF$)"+GE9+F-9G8#"+H8)"9I

10



:J).+$''&'*)P"'F&1,/$%&"'F
:J()."+&#-)P"'%,R%

P8)$EA8.+D.8AA$AJ+DE.$#/+U98?"HE9_+8A&+P8)$EA8.+D.8AA$AJ+D98#)$#"+C-$&8A#"
N*"+&")"9?$A8)$EA+EG+5.8AA$AJ+855.$#8)$EAF+$F+?8&"+?$A&G-.+EG+["A)98.+CE%"9A?"A)+8&%$#"+
8A&+ )*"+ OE#8.+ D.8A+ GE9+ )*"+ 89"8I+ T)+ $F+ 9"#EJA$F"&+ )*8)+ OE#8.+ D.8AA$AJ+ 4-)*E9$)$"F+ ?-F)+
&")"9?$A"+855.$#8)$EAF+$A+8##E9&8A#"+H$)*+)*"+F)8)-)E9/+L"%".E5?"A)+D.8A^+-A."FF+?8)"9$8.+
#EAF$&"98)$EAF+ $A&$#8)"+E)*"9H$F"^+8A&+)*8)+ )*"+5.8AA$AJ+F/F)"?+&E"F+AE)+"<$F)+ )E+59E)"#)+
)*"+59$%8)"+$A)"9"F)F+EG+EA"+5"9FEA+8J8$AF)+8AE)*"9I+

N*"+P8)$EA8.+D.8AA$AJ+DE.$#/+U98?"HE9_+RPDDUX+H8F+5-@.$F*"&+EA+0e+B89#*+0120I+N*$F+$F+
8+ _"/+ 589)+ EG+ )*"+CE%"9A?"A)F+ 9"GE9?F+ )E+?8_"+ )*"+ 5.8AA$AJ+ F/F)"?+ ."FF+ #E?5."<+ 8A&+
?E9"+8##"FF$@."^+8A&+)E+59E?E)"+F-F)8$A8@."+J9EH)*I

N*"+ PDDU+ F)8)"F+ )*8)+ aJEE&+ &"F$JA+ $F+ 8+ _"/+ 8F5"#)+ EG+ F-F)8$A8@."+ &"%".E5?"A)^+ $F+
$A&$%$F$@."+G9E?+JEE&+5.8AA$AJ^+8A&+F*E-.&+#EA)9$@-)"+5EF$)$%"./+)E+?8_$AJ+5.8#"F+@"))"9+GE9+
5"E5."aI+ N*"+ PDDU+ 9")8$AF+ 8+ 59"F-?5)$EA+ $A+ G8%E-9+ EG+ F-F)8$A8@."+ &"%".E5?"A)I+ N*$F+
855.$"F+ -A."FF+ 8A/+ 8&%"9F"+ $?58#)F+ EG+ 8+ &"%".E5?"A)+ HE-.&+ aF$JA$G$#8A)./+ 8A&+
&"?EAF)98@./a+E-)H"$J*+)*"+@"A"G$)FI

N*"+B8/E9aF+OEA&EA+D.8A+B89#*+0123
N*"+OEA&EA+L"%".E5?"A)+D.8A+ $F+ )*"+E%"98..+F)98)"J$#+5.8A+ GE9+OEA&EA^+8A&+ $)+F")F+E-)+8+
G-../+ $A)"J98)"&+ "#EAE?$#^+ "A%$9EA?"A)8.^+ )98AF5E9)+ 8A&+ FE#$8.+ G98?"HE9_+ GE9+ )*"+
&"%".E5?"A)+ EG+ )*"+ #85$)8.+ )E+ 01=2I+ T)+ GE9?F+ 589)+ EG+ )*"+ &"%".E5?"A)+ 5.8A+ GE9+ C9"8)"9+
OEA&EA+8A&+$F+9"#EJA$F"&+$A+)*"+PDDU+8F+589)+EG+)*"+&"%".E5?"A)+5.8AI+

N*"+OEA&EA+D.8A+59E%$&"F+8+-A$G$"&+G98?"HE9_+GE9+F)98)"J$"F+)*8)+89"+&"F$JA"&+)E+"AF-9"+
)*8)+8..+OEA&EA"9F+@"A"G$)+G9E?+F-F)8$A8@."+$?59E%"?"A)F+)E+)*"$9+d-8.$)/+EG+.$G"I

]89A")aF+OE#8.+D.8A+R0120X
]89A")aF+OE#8.+D.8A+ $F+?8&"+-5+EG+8+F-$)"+EG+&E#-?"A)F+ $A#.-&$AJ+ )*"+[E9"+>)98)"J/+8A&+
L"%".E5?"A)+B8A8J"?"A)+DE.$#$"F+L"%".E5?"A)+D.8A+LE#-?"A)FI+]E)*+H"9"+8&E5)"&+$A+
>"5)"?@"9+0120I
K+!"."%8A)+[E9"+>)98)"J/+DE.$#$"F'+[>+PDDU^+[>2^+[>3I
K+!"."%8A)+L"%".E5?"A)+B8A8J"?"A)+DE.$#$"F'+LB12^+LB10I

N*"+[E-A#$.aF+8559E8#*+)E+"<)"AF$EAF+8F+F")+E-)+$A+DE.$#/+LB12+$F+)E+?$A$?$F"+)*"$9+$?58#)+
EA+ )*"+ .E#8.+ "A%$9EA?"A)+ 8A&+ )E+ "AF-9"+ )*8)+ E##-5$"9F+ EG+ A"H+&"%".E5?"A)F+ 8F+H"..+ 8F+
A"$J*@E-9$AJ+ E##-5$"9F+ "AME/+ 8+ *$J*+ F)8A&89&+ EG+ 8?"A$)/I+ DE.$#/+ LB12+ F)8)"F+ )*8)+ 8..+
&"%".E5?"A)+ F*E-.&+ 9"59"F"A)+ *$J*+ d-8.$)/+ &"F$JA+ 8A&+ F*E-.&+ @"+ &"F$JA"&+ )E+ 8..EH+ GE9+
8&"d-8)"+ &8/.$J*)^+ F-A.$J*)^+ 59$%8#/+ 8A&+ E-).EE_+ GE9+ 8&ME$A$AJ+ E##-5$"9FI+ DE.$#/+ LB10+
F)8)"F+)*8)+H*"9"+8559E59$8)"^+&"%".E5?"A)+H$..+@"+"<5"#)"&+)E+&"?EAF)98)"+#E?5.$8A#"+)E+
?$A$?-?+ 8?"A$)/+ F)8A&89&F+ 8A&+ ?8_"+ 8+ 5EF$)$%"+ #EA)9$@-)$EA+ )E+ )*"+ ]E9E-J*I+ N*"+
&"%".E5?"A)+F)8A&89&F+F")+E-)+ $A+DE.$#/+LB10+89"+9"J89&"&+8F+_"/+GE9+]89A")+ )E+&".$%"9+
)*"+*$J*"F)+F)8A&89&F+EG+-9@8A+&"F$JAI

>-55."?"A)89/+D.8AA$AJ+LE#-?"A)F
!"F$&"A)$8.+L"F$JA+C-$&8A#"+>DL+R8&E5)"&+459$.+012=X
K+ >")F+ E-)+ $AGE9?8)$EA+ GE9+ 855.$#8A)F+ )E+ *".5+ )*"?+ &"F$JA+ 8A+ "<)"AF$EA+ )E+ )*"$9+ 59E5"9)/+
H*$#*+HE-.&+9"#"$%"+G8%E-98@."+#EAF$&"98)$EA+@/+)*"+OE#8.+D.8AA$AJ+4-)*E9$)/+8A&+H8F+)*"+
F-@M"#)+ EG+ F"5898)"+ 5-@.$#+ #EAF-.)8)$EAI+ N*"+ >DL+ F)8)"F+ )*8)+ .89J"+ 89"8F+ EG+ ]89A")+ 89"+

11



#*898#)"9$F"&+ @/+ 9".8)$%"./+ .EH+ &"AF$)/+ F-@-9@8A+ *E-F$AJ+ H$)*+ 8A+ 8))98#)$%"+ ?$<)-9"+ EG+
)"998#"^+F"?$+&")8#*"&+8A&+&")8#*"&+*E-F"FI+N*"+[E-A#$.+$F+#E??$))"&+)E+59E)"#)$AJ^+8A&+
H*"9"+5EFF$@."+"A*8A#$AJ+ )*"+#*898#)"9+EG+ )*"+@E9E-J*aF+ 9"F$&"A)$8.+89"8F+8A&+ 9")8$A$AJ+
8A+8))98#)$%"+F)9"")+F#"A"I
K+>)8)"F+)*8)+"<)"AF$EAF+F*E-.&+AE9?8../+@"+F-@E9&$A8)"+)E+)*"+E9$J$A8.+*E-F"^+9"F5"#)+)*"+
E9$J$A8.+ @-$.&$AJ+ 8A&+ F*E-.&+ AE)+ @"+ E%"9./+ &E?$A8A)I+ ;<)"AF$EAF+ F*E-.&+ AE9?8../+ @"+
#EAF$F)"A)+$A+9"J89&+)E+)*"+GE9?^+F#8."+8A&+89#*$)"#)-98.+F)/."+EG+)*"+E9$J$A8.+@-$.&$AJ+H*$#*+
#8A+ @"+ 8#*$"%"&+ )*9E-J*+ 9"F5"#)$AJ+ )*"+ 59E5E9)$EAF+ EG+ )*"+ "<$F)$AJ+ *E-F"+ 8A&+ -F$AJ+ 8A+
8559E59$8)"+9EEG+GE9?I
K+ TA+ 9"F5"#)+ EG+ 8?"A$)/^+ F)8)"F+ )*8)+ "<)"AF$EAF+ F*E-.&+ AE)+ @"+ E%"9@"89$AJ+ E9+ -A&-./+
E@)9-F$%"+ 8A&+ #89"+ F*E-.&+ @"+ )8_"A+ )E+ "AF-9"+ )*8)+ )*"/+ &E+ AE)+ 9"F-.)+ $A+ *89?G-.+ .EFF+ EG+
E-).EE_^+ 855"89+ E%"9@"89$AJ^+ E9+ #8-F"+ 8A+ $A#9"8F"&+ F"AF"+ EG+ "A#.EF-9"+ )E+ 8&ME$A$AJ+
59E5"9)$"FI+N*"/+ F*E-.&+AE)+ 9"&-#"+ .$J*)+ )E+ A"$J*@E-9$AJ+H$A&EHF+ )E+*8@$)8@."+ 9EE?F+E9+
#8-F"+F$JA$G$#8A)+E%"9F*8&EH$AJ^+8A&+F*E-.&+AE)+.EE_+E-)+EG+5.8#"^+E%"9@"89$AJ+E9+$A)9-F$%"+
H*"A+%$"H"&+G9E?+F-99E-A&$AJ+89"8FI

>-F)8$A8@."+L"F$JA+8A&+[EAF)9-#)$EA+>DL+R8&E5)"&+459$.+012=X
K+D9E%$&"F+&")8$."&+J-$&8A#"+)*8)+F-55."?"A)F+5E.$#$"F+$A+)*"+8&E5)"&+OE#8.+D.8A^+8A&+F")F+
E-)+*EH+F-F)8$A8@."+&"%".E5?"A)+H$..+@"+&".$%"9"&+$A+]89A")I

:J5)S$&')&FFN,F)8"/)#"'F&1,/$%&"'

N*"+?8$A+$FF-"F+GE9+#EAF$&"98)$EA+$A+)*$F+#8F"+89"'
K+7*")*"9+*89?+HE-.&+@"+#8-F"&+)E+)*"+#*898#)"9+8A&+855"898A#"+EG+)*"+"<$F)$AJ+@-$.&$AJ^+
)*"+F)9"")+F#"A"+8A&+)*"+H$&"9+.E#8.$)/c
K+7*")*"9+*89?+HE-.&+@"+#8-F"&+)E+)*"+.$%$AJ+#EA&$)$EAF+EG+A"$J*@E-9$AJ+9"F$&"A)FI

:JM)6FF,FFB,'%)"8)L/"L"F$+F

DE)"A)$8.+ $?58#)F+-5EA+ )*"+#*898#)"9+8A&+855"898A#"+EG+ )*"+"<$F)$AJ+@-$.&$AJ^+ )*"+F)9"")+
F#"A"+8A&+)*"+H$&"9+.E#8.$)/

N*"+[E-A#$.F+!"F$&"A)$8.+L"F$JA+C-$&8A#"+>DL+012=+8&%$F"F+ )*8)+ "<)"AF$EA+ F*E-.&+@"+
F-@E9&$A8)"+8&&$)$EAF+#EAF)9-#)"&+H$)*+?8)"9$8.F+H*$#*+89"+$A+_""5$AJ+H$)*+)*"+9"F)+EG+)*"+
*E-F"I+ UE9+ 8+ F"?$K&")8#*"&+ &H"..$AJ+ 8+ &"5)*+ EG+ -5+ )E+ =I3+ ?")9"F+ HE-.&+ AE9?8../+ @"+
#EAF$&"9"&+ 8##"5)8@."+ @-)+ $)+ 8.FE+ 8&%$F"F+ )*8)+ #89"+ F*E-.&+ @"+ )8_"A+ $A+ )*"+ &"F$JA+ 8A&+
.E#8)$EA+EG+"<)"AF$EAF+)E+?$A$?$g"+$?58#)F+-5EA+A"$J*@E-9$AJ+59E5"9)$"FI

N*$F+ J-$&8A#"+ 8.FE+ F""_F+ )E+ "AF-9"+ )*8)+ @8F"?"A)+ &"%".E5?"A)+ &E"F+ AE)+ *89?+ )*"+
"F)8@.$F*"&+89#*$)"#)-98.+#*898#)"9+EG+@-$.&$AJF+8A&+F-99E-A&$AJ+89"8F^+ $A#.-&$AJ+J89&"AF+
8A&+A"89@/+ )9""F^+8A&+ )*8)+AE+8&%"9F"+ $?58#)+ $F+ #8-F"&+ )E+ )*"+8?"A$)/+EG+A"$J*@E-9$AJ+
59E5"9)$"FI+ N*$F+ &E#-?"A)+ F)8)"F+ )*8)'+ !"#$ %&'(%)*$ +)**$ (&,-.**/$ .**&+$ 0)(1*#$ 2*&&,$
3.0#-#(4$#54#(0)&(0$+")%"$6&$(&4$ 7,&8#%4$ 2',4"#,$ 4".($9$-#4,#0$ 2,&-$ 4"#$ ,#.,$+.**$ &2$ .$
"&'0#$&,$-&,#$4".($".*2$)40$+)64"$3#/&(6$#.%"$0)6#$#*#:.4)&(I+N*$F+$F+F-@M"#)+)E+8A/+%$F$@."+
"."?"A)F+EG+)*"+@8F"?"A)+@"$AJ+F-@E9&$A8)"+)E+)*"+*EF)+&H"..$AJ+8A&+F*E-.&+AE)+$?58#)+E9+
855"89+$A#EAJ9-E-F+$A+8A/+"F)8@.$F*"&+F)9"")+F#"A"I

]8F"?"A)F+ 89"+ AE)+ #E??EA+ G"8)-9"F+ EA+ 59E5"9)$"F+ 8.EAJ+ O8AJ."/+ D89_c+ *EH"%"9+ )*$F+
F*E-.&+ AE)+ ."8&+ )E+ 8A+ $AK59$A#$5."+ E@M"#)$EA+ )E+ @8F"?"A)+ "<)"AF$EAF+ 59E%$&"&+ )*8)+
59E5EF8.F+89"+8559E59$8)"./+&"F$JA"&I+UE..EH$AJ+)*"+F-@?$FF$EA+EG+8?"A&?"A)F+)*"+F#8."+
EG+ )*"+ 59E5EF"&+ @8F"?"A)+ 8F+H"..+ 8F+ )*"+ 8?E-A)+ 8A&+ .E#8)$EA+ EG+ )*"+ 8FFE#$8)"&+ %$F-8.+

12



?8A$G"F)8)$EAF+ *8%"+ @""A+ 9"&-#"&+ )E+ 8&&9"FF+ EGG$#"9aF+ #EA#"9AFI+ N*"+ F#8."+ EG+ )*"+
59E5EF"&+ @8F"?"A)+ $F+ AEH+ $A+ .$A"+ H$)*+ )*"+ #9$)"9$8+ EG+ )*"+ [E-A#$.F+ !"F$&"A)$8.+ L"F$JA+
C-$&8A#"+>DL+012=I+D89)+EG+)*"+59E5EF"&+&"%".E5?"A)+HE-.&+$A#.-&"+)E+&"?E.$)$EA+EG+)*"+
"<$F)$AJ+F$AJ."+F)E9"/+"<)"AF$EAF+)E+)*"+G9EA)+EG+)*"+59E5"9)/I+

N*"+ 59E5EF"&+ .$J*)H"..F+ 89"+ #EAF$&"9"&+ )E+ @"+ EG+ 8A+ 8559E59$8)"+ F#8."+ 8A&+ HE-.&+ AE)+
G"8)-9"+8A/+98$.$AJF^+J9$.."F+E9+E)*"9+%$F-8.+#.-))"9I+N*"+"<$F)"A#"+EG+8+@8F"?"A)+EA+)*"+F$)"+
HE-.&+ )*"9"GE9"+ EA./+ @"+ E@F"9%8@."+ &-"+ )E+ )*"+ 59"F"A#"+ EG+ #E%"9"&+ E5"A$AJ+ .E#8)"&+ 8+
?$A$?-?+EG+ZI(+?")9"F+ G9E?+ )*"+5-@.$#+58%$AJI+ T)+ $F+ #EAF$&"9"&+ )*8)+ )*"+59E5EF"&+%$F-8.+
?8A$G"F)8)$EAF+ H*$#*+ HE-.&+ @"+ %$F$@."+ G9E?+ O8AJ."/+ D89_+ 8A&+ HE-.&+ AE)+ HE-.&+ *8%"+ 8+
."FF"9+ $?58#)+-5EA+)*"+F)9"")F#"A"+)*8A+)*"+"<$F)$AJ+F$AJ."+F)E9"/+"."?"A)I+N*$F+"."?"A)+
EG+)*"+59E5EF8.+)*"9"GE9"+#EAF$&"9"&+)E+*8%"+8A+8##"5)8@."+ $?58#)+ $A+)"9?F+EG+#*898#)"9I+
NE+ @"+ F-9"+ )*8)+ )*"+ &"F$JAF+ EG+ )*"+ E5"A$AJF+ )*"?F".%"F+ 89"+ 8##"5)8@."+ $A+ )"9?F+ EG+
#*898#)"9^+8+#EA&$)$EA+ )E+A"#"FF$)8)"+ )*"+F-@?$FF$EA+EG+ G-9)*"9+&")8$.F+EG+ )*"+#E%"9$AJF+EG+
)*"F"+.$J*)H"..+HE-.&+@"+M-F)$G$8@."+8A&+A"#"FF89/I

N*"+ 59E5EF"&+ F$AJ."+ F)E9"/+ 9"89+ "<)"AF$EA+ GE..EHF+ 855.$#8)$EAF+ 23f1=0Z(fDP:+ &8)"&+
00I1`I0123+ 8A&+ 23f1=63`f260+ &8)"&+ =1I1`I0123+ H*$#*+ #-?-.8)$%"./+ J98A)"&+ )HE+ F$AJ."+
F)E9"/+9"89+"<)"AF$EAF+H$)*+8+59E5EF"&+&"5)*+EG+`+?")9"F+.8HG-.I+]"#8-F"+EG+)*"+&$FME$A)"&+
9"89+@-$.&$AJ+.$A"+EG+)*"+E9$J$A8.+59E5"9)/^+ )*"F"+855.$#8)$EAF+H"9"+GE9#"&+)E+59E5EF"&+)HE+
F"5898)"+9"89+"<)"AF$EAF+$A+E9&"9+)E+@"+#EAF$&"9"&+.8HG-.I+N*"+"<)"AF$EA+*"9"@/+59E5EF"&+
HE-.&+?8$A)8$A+ )*"+ F8?"+ &"5)*^+ 9EEG+ GE9?^+ "8%"F+ *"$J*)+ 8A&+?8<$?-?+ *"$J*)+ EG+ )*EF"+
"<)"AF$EAF+59"%$E-F./+&")"9?$A"&+.8HG-.^+@-)+H$)*+)*"+#"A)98.+J85+R7h1I6?^+Lh`?X+$A+G$.."&+
)E+GE9?+8+-A$G$"&+9"89+"<)"AF$EAI+L-9$AJ+8+F$)"+%$F$)+$)+H8F+GE-A&+)*8)+HE9_F+H"9"+EA+JE$AJ+)E+
$?5."?"A)+ )*"+ &"%".E5?"A)+ H*$#*+ &E"F+ AE)+ 9"d-$9"+ "<59"FF+ 5"9?$FF$EAI+ N*"+
$?5."?"A)8)$EA+EG+)*"+F#*"?"+J98A)"&+&""?"&+#EAF"A)+@/+855.$#8)$EA+AEI+23f1=63`f260+$F+
)*"9"GE9"+#EAF$&"9"&+)E+@"+8+%$8@."+ G8..+@8#_+E5)$EAI+N*"+%89$8)$EA+@")H""A+)*$F+59"%$F$EA+
F#*"?"+8A&+)*8)+H*$#*+ $F+AEH+59E5EF"&+$F+AE)+#EAF$&"9"&+)E+#8-F"+F$JA$G$#8A)+8&&$)$EA8.+
*89?+)E+)*"+#*898#)"9+EG+)*"+E9$J$A8.+&H"..$AJ+8A&+HE-.&+AE)+$?58#)+-5EA+)*"+F)9"")F#"A"+EG+
O8AJ."/+D89_I+++

4.)*E-J*+ $)+ $F+8#_AEH."&J"&+ )*8)+#-?-.8)$%"./+ )*"+59E5"9)/+ $F+59E5EF"&+ )E+@"+"<)"AF$%"./+
"A.89J"&c+ @"#8-F"+ EG+ $)F+ .89J"+ 5.E)+ F$g"^+ A8)-98.+ F#9""A$AJ+ 8A&+ 5.8AA$AJ+ *$F)E9/+ $)+ $F+ AE)+
#EAF$&"9"&+)*8)+)*"+59E5EF"&+&"%".E5?"A)F+HE-.&+#8-F"+F$JA$G$#8A)+*89?+)E+)*"+#*898#)"9+
8A&+ 855"898A#"+ EG+ )*"+ &H"..$AJ+ E9+ .E#8.+ 89"8+ )E+ H8998A)+ 8+ 9"8FEA+ GE9+ 9"G-F8.I+ N*"+
&"%".E5?"A)F+HE-.&+9"?8$A+59E5E9)$EA8)"+)E+)*"+E9$J$A8.+&H"..$AJ+8A&+HE-.&+AE)+#EAF)$)-)"+
8A+E%"9+&"%".E5?"A)+EG+)*$F+.89J"+#E9A"9+5.E)I

DE)"A)$8.+$?58#)F+-5EA+)*"+8?"A$)$"F+EG+A"$J*@E-9$AJ+9"F$&"A)F

N*"+59E5EF"&+@8F"?"A)+"<)"AF$EA+HE-.&+GE9?+8+.EH"9+J9E-A&+G.EE9+589)/+H8..+@")H""A+)*"+
)HE+8&ME$A$AJ+59E5"9)$"F^+*EH"%"9+8F+AEI=+&E"F+AE)+G"8)-9"+8+@8F"?"A)+$)+$F+AE)+#EAF$&"9"&+
)*8)+ )*"+ A"$J*@E-9$AJ+ E##-5$"9F+ EG+ )*$F+ 59E5"9)/+ HE-.&+ @"+ 8&%"9F"./+ "GG"#)"&+ @/+ )*$F+
"."?"A)+EG+)*"+F#*"?"I+TA+E9&"9+)E+"AF-9"+)*8)+)*"+$?5."?"A)8)$EA+EG+)*"+F#*"?"+&E"F+AE)+
M"E589&$F"+)*"+8?"A$)$"F+E9+F8G")/+EG+E##-5$"9+EG+9"F$&"A)F+EG+O8AJ."/+D89_^+$)+$F+#EAF$&"9"&+
)*8)+ 8+ #EA&$)$EA+ 9"d-$9$AJ+ )*"+ F-@?$FF$EA+ EG+ 8+ L"?E.$)$EA+ 8A&+ [EAF)9-#)$EA+ ?")*E&F+
F)8)"?"A)+$F+A"#"FF89/I+

4F+8GE9"?"A)$EA"&^+)*"+59E5EF"&+F$AJ."+F)E9"/+9"89+"<)"AF$EA+HE-.&+*8%"+)*"+F8?"+&"5)*+
8A&+*"$J*)+8.EAJ+)*"+F*89"&+@E-A&89/+H$)*+AEI=+8F+)*"+59"%$E-F./+#EAF"A)"&+F#*"?"I+N*"+
59E5EF"&+ $AG$..+ F"#)$EA+ HE-.&+ AE)+ #8-F"+ *89?+ )E+ )*"+ 8?"A$)$"F+ EG+ 8A/+ A"$J*@E-9$AJ+

13



9"F$&"A)I+TA+E9&"9+)E+"AF-9"+)*8)+)*"+59$%8#/+EG+)*"+E##-5$"9F+EG+)*$F+A"$J*@E-9$AJ+59E5"9)/+
$F+?8$A)8$A"&^+8+#EA&$)$EA+)E+9"F)9$#)+)*"+-F"+EG+)*"+G.8)+9EEG+H$..+@"+8&&"&+)E+)*"+&"#$F$EAI

N*"+F-@?$))"&+5.8AF+?8_"+AE+?"A)$EA+EG+ 8+59E5EF"&+#*8AJ"+EG+ -F"+H$)*$A+ )*"+&H"..$AJ+
G9E?+8+ F$AJ."+ G8?$./+ &H"..$AJ+ )E+ 8+:BVf*EF)".I+ 4F+ )*"+ 5E)"A)$8.+ GE9+ G-)-9"+ &"%".E5?"A)F+
?8/+ AE)+ GE9?+ 8+?8)"9$8.+ #EAF$&"98)$EA^+ 8+ 5E)"A)$8.+ #*8AJ"+ EG+ -F"+ F*E-.&+ AE)+ J-$&"+ )*$F+
&")"9?$A8)$EAI+N*8)+F8$&+$)+$F+8#_AEH."&J"&+)*8)+)*"+#*898#)"9+EG+O8AJ."/+D89_+8F+H"..+8F+
)*"+&H"..$AJ+F*E-.&+@"+59E)"#)"&+8F+H"..+8F+8?"A$)$"F+EG+.E#8.+9"F$&"A)F+$A+)"9?F+EG+589_$AJ+
59E%$F$EAI+ 4F+ F-#*+ $)+ $F+ #EAF$&"9"&+ )*8)+ 8+ #EA&$)$EA+ )E+ 9"F)9$#)+ DL+ 9$J*)F+ 9".8)$AJ+ )E+ )*"+
#*8AJ"+EG+-F"+$A)E+8+:BV+HE-.&+@"+M-F)$G$8@."+8A&+A"#"FF89/I

4+ A-?@"9+ EG+ #E??"A)F+ *8%"+ @""A+ 9"#"$%"&+ H*$#*+ 9".8)"+ )E+ )*"+ 8?E-A)+ EG+ 589_$AJ+
8%8$.8@."+8.EAJ+O8AJ."/+D89_+8F+H"..+8F+)*"+F8G")/+EG+)*"+8##"FF+)E+)*"+F$)"I+>-@?$))"&+F$)"+
5.8A+OPC;QKOZ12+[+F*EHF+ )*8)^+@/+ 9"?E%$AJ+ )*"+"<$F)$AJ+F$AJ."+F)E9"/+"."?"A)F+8)+ )*"+
G9EA)+EG+)*"+59E5"9)/+EAF$)"+589_$AJ+GE9+8)+."8F)+)HE+#89F+HE-.&+@"+GE9?"&I+4F+AE+#*8AJ"+EG+
-F"+$F+59E5EF"&+8F+8+589)+EG+)*"+855.$#8)$EA^+$)+$F+#EAF$&"9"&+)*8)+)HE+F58#"F+89"+8&"d-8)"+
GE9+ 8+ F$AJ."+ G8?$./+ &H"..$AJI+ N*"+ 8##"FF+ $A)E+ )*"+ F$)"^+ HE-.&+ 9"?8$A+ 8F+ "<$F)$AJ+ 8A&+
)*"9"GE9"+&E"F+AE)+8))98#)+E@M"#)$EAI

>-@M"#)+ )E+ )*"F"+ 8GE9"?"A)$EA"&+ #EA&$)$EAF^+ $)+ $F+ AE)+ #EAF$&"9"&+ )*8)+ )*"+ 59E5EF"&+
&"%".E5?"A)F+HE-.&+$?58#)+-5EA+)*"+8?"A$)$"F+EG+8A/+A"$J*@E-9$AJ+9"F$&"A)+)E+8+."%".+EG+
&")9$?"A)I

:J=)7,FL"'F,)%").NO+&#)P"'FN+%$%&"'

!"F5EAF"F+)E+#E??"A)F+9"#"$%"&+AE)+8.9"8&/+8&&9"FF+$A+)*"+8@E%"+85598$F8.'
K+ TFF-"F+9".8)$AJ+ )E+H8)"9+59"FF-9"+HE-.&+AE)+ GE9?+8+?8)"9$8.+5.8AA$AJ+#EAF$&"98)$EA+8A&+
HE-.&+@"+#E%"9"&+@/+F"5898)"+."J$F.8)$EAI
K+TFF-"F+9".8)$AJ+)E+F-@FE$.F^+&98$A8J"+8A&+GE-A&8)$EAF+HE-.&+AE)+GE9?+8+?8)"9$8.+5.8AA$AJ+
#EAF$&"98)$EA+8A&+HE-.&+@"+#E%"9"&+@/+F"5898)"+."J$F.8)$EAI
K+N*"+F8G")/+EG+)*"+"<$F)$AJ+#9EFFE%"9+8A&+5-@.$#+GEE)58)*+HE-.&+@"+8+:$J*H8/F+?8))"9
K+N*"+#EAF-.)8)$EA+59E#"FF+ GE9+ )*$F+855.$#8)$EA+H8F+ $A+8##E9&8A#"+H$)*+P8)$EA8.+D.8AA$AJ+
D98#)$F"+C-$&8A#"I+["9)$G$#8)"+EG+O8HG-.+&"%".E5?"A)+855.$#8)$EAF+&E+AE)+$A#.-&"+8+GE9?8.+
5-@.$#+#EAF-.8)$EA+59E#"FFI
K+N*"+5E)"A)$8.+ GE9+59"#"&"A)+ $A+&"%".E5?"A)+?8/+AE)+@"+-F"&+8F+8+9"8FEA+)E+&")"9?$A"+
855.$#8)$EAF^+H*$#*+?-F)+@"+8FF"FF"&+-5EA+)*"$9+$A&$%$&-8.+?"9$)FI

TJ)AUN$+&%-)$'1)K&D,/F&%-)CFFN,F

N*"+ 59E5EF8.+ &E"F+ AE)+ #EAG.$#)+ H$)*+ "$)*"9+ ]89A")+ [E-A#$.aF+ ;d-8.$)$"F+ DE.$#/+ E9+ )*"+
#E??$)?"A)F+F")+$A+)*"+;d-8.$)/+>#*"?"+8A&+F-55E9)F+)*"+[E-A#$.+$A+?"")$AJ+$)F+F)8)-)E9/+
"d-8.$)/+9"F5EAF$@$.$)$"FI

4J)P"'#+NF&"'

:8%$AJ+ )8_"A+ 8..+ ?8)"9$8.+ #EAF$&"98)$EAF+ $A)E+ 8##E-A)^+ $)+ $F+ #EAF$&"9"&+ )*8)+ F-@M"#)+ )E+
#E?5.$8A#"+ H$)*+ )*"+ 8))8#*"&+ #EA&$)$EAF^+ )*"+ 59E5EF"&+ &"%".E5?"A)+ HE-.&+ *8%"+ 8A+
8##"5)8@."+ $?58#)+ EA+ )*"+ #*898#)"9+ 8A&+ 855"898A#"+ EG+ )*"+ 855.$#8)$EA+ F$)"^+ )*"+ F)9"")+
F#"A"+8A&+)*"+.E#8.$)/I+N*"+&"%".E5?"A)+$F+AE)+#EAF$&"9"&+)E+*8%"+8A+8&%"9F"+$?58#)+EA+

14



)*"+ 8?"A$)$"F+ EG+ A"$J*@E-9$AJ+ E##-5$"9FI+ N*$F+ 855.$#8)$EA+ $F+ )*"9"GE9"+ 9"#E??"A&"&+ GE9+
8559E%8.I

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1
 L

a
n

g
le

y
 P

a
r

k
, N

W
7

 2
A

A
 –

  
1

5
/

0
4

2
7

8
/

H
S

E
 

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Location 60 Uphill Road London NW7 4PU    

 
Reference: 

 
15/04704/FUL 

 
Received: 27th July 2015 

  Accepted: 28th July 2015 

Ward: Mill Hill Expiry 22nd September 2015 

    

Applicant: Mr S NOVAK 

    

Proposal: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 2 no. three storey dwellings 

 
 

Recommendation: Approve subject to conditions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: Drawing No. 421514-8, 9, 10, 11 and 12.  
   
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning and so 

as to ensure that the development is carried out fully in accordance with the plans 
as assessed in accordance with Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core 
Strategy DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policy DM01 of the Local Plan 
Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012). 

 
 2 This development must be begun within three years from the date of this 

permission.  
   
 Reason: To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004. 
 
 3 a) No development other than demolition works shall take place until details of the 

materials to be used for the external surfaces of the building(s) and hard surfaced 
areas hereby approved have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  

   
 b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the 

materials as approved under this condition.  
   
 Reason: To safeguard the character and visual amenities of the site and wider area 

and to ensure that the building is constructed in accordance with Policies CS NPPF 
and CS1 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012), Policy DM01 
of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and 
Policies 1.1, 7.4, 7.5 and 7.6 of the London Plan 2011. 

 
 4 a) No development shall take place until details of the levels of the building(s), 

road(s) and footpath(s) in relation to the adjoining land and highway(s) and any 

AGENDA ITEM 8

19



other changes proposed in the levels of the site have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

   
 b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the details 

as approved under this condition and retained as such thereafter.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out at suitable levels in relation 

to the highway and adjoining land having regard to drainage, gradient of access, the 
safety and amenities of users of the site, the amenities of the area and the health of 
any trees or vegetation in accordance with policies CS NPPF, CS1, CS5 and CS7 
of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012), Policies DM01, DM04 
and DM17 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 
2012), and Policies 7.4, 7.5, 7.6 and 7.21 of the London Plan 2011. 

 
 5 a) No development or site works shall take place on site until a 'Demolition & 

Construction Method Statement' has been submitted to and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority.  

   
 The Statement shall provide for: access to the site; the parking of vehicles for site 

operatives and visitors; hours of construction, including deliveries, loading and 
unloading of plant and materials; the storage of plant and materials used in the 
construction of the development; the erection of any means of temporary enclosure 
or security hoarding and measures to prevent mud and debris being carried on to 
the public highway and ways to minimise pollution.  

   
 b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the 

measures detailed within the statement.  
   
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety and good air quality in accordance with 

Policies DM04 and DM17 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted 
September 2012), the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 
2013) and Policy 5.21 of the London Plan (2011). 

 
 6 a) A scheme of hard and soft landscaping, including details of existing trees to be 

retained and size, species, planting heights, densities and positions of any soft 
landscaping, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority before the development hereby permitted is commenced.  

   
 b) All work comprised in the approved scheme of landscaping shall be carried out 

before the end of the first planting and seeding season following occupation of any 
part of the buildings or completion of the development, whichever is sooner, or 
commencement of the use.  

   
 c) Any existing tree shown to be retained or trees or shrubs to be planted as part of 

the approved landscaping scheme which are removed, die, become severely 
damaged or diseased within five years of the completion of development shall be 
replaced with trees or shrubs of appropriate size and species in the next planting 
season.  

   
 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development in accordance 

with Policies CS5 and CS7 of the Local Plan Core Strategy DPD (adopted 
September 2012), Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies DPD 

20



(adopted September 2012), the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD 
(adopted April 2013) and 7.21 of the London Plan 2011. 

 
 7 a) No development shall take place until details of the location, extent and depth of 

all excavations for services (including but not limited to electricity, gas, water, 
drainage and telecommunications) in relation to trees on and adjacent to the site 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

   
 b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with details 

approved under this condition.  
   
 Reason: To safeguard the health of existing tree(s) which represent an important 

amenity feature in accordance with CS5 and CS7 of the Local Plan Core Strategy 
(adopted September 2012), Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies 
DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policy 7.21 of the London Plan 2011). 

 
 8 a) No site works or development (including any temporary enabling works, site 

clearance and demolition) shall take place until a dimensioned tree protection plan 
in accordance with Section 5.5 and a method statement detailing precautions to 
minimise damage to trees in accordance with Section 6.1 of British Standard 
BS5837: 2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction - 
Recommendations) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  

   
 b) No site works (including any temporary enabling works, site clearance and 

demolition) or development shall take place until the temporary tree protection 
shown on the tree protection plan approved under this condition has been erected 
around existing trees on site. This protection shall remain in position until after the 
development works are completed and no material or soil shall be stored within 
these fenced areas at any time. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with the protection plan and method statement as approved under this 
condition.  

   
 Reason: To safeguard the health of existing trees which represent an important 

amenity feature in accordance with Policy DM01 of the Development Management 
Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), Policies CS5 and CS7 of the Local Plan 
Core Strategy DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policy 7.21 of the London Plan 
2011. 

 
 9 Before the buildings hereby permitted are first occupied the proposed window(s) in 

the flank elevations shall be glazed with obscure glass only and shall be 
permanently retained as such thereafter and shall be permanently fixed shut with 
only a fanlight opening.  

   
 Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of adjoining 

residential properties in accordance with Policy DM01 of the Development 
Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and the Residential Design 
Guidance SPD (adopted April 2013). 

 
10 a) The site shall not be brought into use or first occupied until details of the means 

of enclosure, including boundary treatments, have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

   

21



 b) The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details approved 
as part of this condition before first occupation or the use is commenced and 
retained as such thereafter.  

   
 Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 

appearance of the locality and/or the amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential 
properties and to confine access to the permitted points in the interest of the flow of 
traffic and conditions of general safety on the adjoining highway in accordance with 
Policies DM01, DM03, DM17 of the Development Management Policies DPD 
(adopted September 2012), and Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core 
Strategy (adopted September 2012). 

 
11 Prior to the first occupation of the new dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) hereby 

approved they shall all have been constructed to meet and achieve all the relevant 
criteria of 'The Lifetime Homes' standard (or the equivalent standard in such 
measure of accessibility and adaptability for house design which may replace that 
scheme in future). The development shall be maintained as such in perpetuity 
thereafter.  

    
 Reason:  
 To ensure the development meets the needs of its future occupiers and to comply 

with the requirements of policies 3.8 and 7.2 of the London Plan (2015) and policy 
DM02 of the Barnet Development Management Polices document (2012). 

 
12 Prior to the first occupation of the new dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) hereby 

approved they shall all have been constructed to have 100% of the water supplied 
to them by the mains water infrastructure provided through a water meter or water 
meters and each new dwelling shall be constructed to include water saving and 
efficiency measures so that mains water consumption would meet a standard of 
105 per head per day or less. The development shall be maintained as such in 
perpetuity thereafter.  

   
 Reason:  
 To encourage the efficient use of water in accordance with policy CS13 of the 

Barnet Core Strategy (2012) and policy 5.15 of the London Plan (2015). 
 
13 Prior to the first occupation, the development hereby approved shall be constructed 

incorporating carbon dioxide emission reduction measures which achieve an 
improvement of not less than 25% in carbon dioxide emissions when compared to a 
building constructed to comply with the minimum Target Emission Rate 
requirements of the 2010 Building Regulations. The development shall be 
maintained as such in perpetuity thereafter.  

    
 Reason:   
 To ensure that the development is sustainable and minimises carbon dioxide 

emissions and to comply with the requirements of policies DM01 and DM02 of the 
Barnet Development Management Polices document (2012) and policies 5.2 and 
5.3 of the London Plan (2015). 

 
14 A vehicular sight line of 4.5 metres by 43 metres shall be provided to the either side 

of the site access with the Public highway, prior to the commencement of any other 
works on site, and thereafter be maintained free of all obstructions over a height of 
0.6 metre above the level of the adjoining highway.  

22



   
 Reason: In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with 

London Borough of Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of Core Strategy (Adopted) 
September 2012 and Policy DM17 of Development Management Policies (Adopted) 
September 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
Informative(s): 
 

 
 
 1 In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF, the Local Planning 

Authority (LPA) takes a positive and proactive approach to development proposals, 
focused on solutions. The LPA has produced planning policies and written guidance 
to assist applicants when submitting applications. These are all available on the 
Council's website. A pre-application advice service is also offered and the Applicant 
engaged with this prior to the submissions of this application. The LPA has 
negotiated with the applicant/agent where necessary during the application process 
to ensure that the proposed development is in accordance with the Development 
Plan. 

 
 2 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) applies to all 'chargeable development'. 

This is defined as development of one or more additional units, and / or an increase 
to existing floor space of more than 100 sq m. Details of how the calculations work 
are provided in guidance documents on the Planning Portal at 
www.planningportal.gov.uk/cil.  

   
 The Mayor of London adopted a CIL charge on 1st April 2012 setting a rate of £35 

per sq m on all forms of development in Barnet except for education and health 
developments which are exempt from this charge. Your planning application has 
been assessed at this time as liable for a £__ payment under Mayoral CIL.  

   
 The London Borough of Barnet adopted a CIL charge on 1st May 2013 setting a 

rate of £135 per sq m on residential and retail development in its area of authority. 
All other uses and ancillary car parking are exempt from this charge. Your planning 
application has therefore been assessed at this time as liable for a £__ payment 
under Barnet CIL.  

   
 Please note that Indexation will be added in line with Regulation 40 of Community 

Infrastructure Levy.  
   
 Liability for CIL will be recorded to the register of Local Land Charges as a legal 

charge upon your site payable should you commence development. Receipts of the 
Mayoral CIL charge are collected by the London Borough of Barnet on behalf of the 
Mayor of London; receipts are passed across to Transport for London to support 
Crossrail, London's highest infrastructure priority.  

   
 You will be sent a 'Liability Notice' that provides full details of the charge and to 

whom it has been apportioned for payment. If you wish to identify named parties 
other than the applicant for this permission as the liable party for paying this levy, 

23



please submit to the Council an 'Assumption of Liability' notice, which is also 
available from the Planning Portal website.  

   
 The CIL becomes payable upon commencement of development. You are required 

to submit a 'Notice of Commencement' to the Council's CIL Team prior to 
commencing on site, and failure to provide such information at the due date will 
incur both surcharges and penalty interest. There are various other charges and 
surcharges that may apply if you fail to meet other statutory requirements relating to 
CIL, such requirements will all be set out in the Liability Notice you will receive. You 
may wish to seek professional planning advice to ensure that you comply fully with 
the requirements of CIL Regulations.  

   
 If you have a specific question or matter you need to discuss with the CIL team, or 

you fail to receive a 'Liability Notice' from the Council within 1 month of this grant of 
planning permission, please email us at: cil@barnet.gov.uk.  

   
 Relief or Exemption from CIL:  
   
 If social housing or charitable relief applies to your development or your 

development falls within one of the following categories then this may reduce the 
final amount you are required to pay; such relief must be applied for prior to 
commencement of development using the 'Claiming Exemption or Relief' form 
available from the Planning Portal website: www.planningportal.gov.uk/cil.  

   
 You can apply for relief or exemption under the following categories:  
   
 1. Charity: If you are a charity, intend to use the development for social housing or 

feel that there are exception circumstances affecting your development, you may be 
eligible for a reduction (partial or entire) in this CIL Liability. Please see the 
documentation published by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6314/
19021101.pdf  

   
 2. Residential Annexes or Extensions: You can apply for exemption or relief to the 

collecting authority in accordance with Regulation 42(B) of Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010), as amended before commencement of the 
chargeable development.  

   
 3. Self Build: Application can be made to the collecting authority provided you 

comply with the regulation as detailed in the legislation.gov.uk  
   
 Please visit 

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil 
for further details on exemption and relief. 

 
 

24



 
Officer’s Assessment 
 
1. Site Description 
 
The application site is on Uphill Road, opposite the junction with Green Avenue. The site 
contains a two storey building.  
 
The subject site is surrounded by a mixture of two storey buildings that comprise houses 
and flats. The character of the street is not outstanding in itself containing a varied 
architectural vernacular. 
 
2. Site History 
 
Reference: 15/00023/FUL 
Address: 60 Uphill Road, London, NW7 4PU 
Decision: Refused 
Decision Date:   2 March 2015 
Description: Construction of two detached houses following demolition of existing house 
 
3. Proposal 
 
Construction of two detached houses following demolition of existing house. 
 
4. Public Consultation 
Consultation letters were sent to 26 neighbouring properties. 
5 responses have been received, comprising 5 letters of objection. 
 
The objections received can be summarised as follows: 
- Highway safety 
- The scale and design of the buildings is not in keeping with the surrounding area.  
- Drainage issues and flooding  
- Loss of trees. 
- The balconies will result in overlooking. 
- Overdevelopment of the site. 
 
Internal Consultation: 
 
Highways and Traffic - No objection subject to conditions. 
 
5. Planning Considerations 
 
5.1 Policy Context 
 
National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Practice Guidance 
The determination of planning applications is made mindful of Central Government advice 
and the Local Plan for the area. It is recognised that Local Planning Authorities must 
determine applications in accordance with the statutory Development Plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise, and that the planning system does not exist to protect 
the private interests of one person against another.  
 

25



The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published on 27 March 2012. This is 
a key part of the Governments reforms to make the planning system less complex and 
more accessible, and to promote sustainable growth. 
 
The NPPF states that 'good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for 
people'. The NPPF retains a presumption in favour of sustainable development. This 
applies unless any adverse impacts of a development would 'significantly and 
demonstrably' outweigh the benefits. 
 
The Mayor's London Plan 2015 
The London Development Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it sets out a 
fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the 
development of the capital to 2050. It forms part of the development plan for Greater 
London and is recognised in the NPPF as part of the development plan.  
 
The London Plan provides a unified framework for strategies that are designed to ensure 
that all Londoners benefit from sustainable improvements to their quality of life. 
 
Barnet's Local Plan (2012) 
Barnet's Local Plan is made up of a suite of documents including the Core Strategy and 
Development Management Policies Development Plan Documents. Both were adopted in 
September 2012. 
- Relevant Core Strategy Policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5. 
- Relevant Development Management Policies: DM01, DM02, DM08, DM17. 
 
The Council's approach to development as set out in Policy DM01 is to minimise the 
impact on the local environment and to ensure that occupiers of new developments as well 
as neighbouring occupiers enjoy a high standard of amenity. Policy DM01 states that all 
development should represent high quality design and should be designed to allow for 
adequate daylight, sunlight, privacy and outlook for adjoining occupiers. Policy DM02 
states that where appropriate, development will be expected to demonstrate compliance to 
minimum amenity standards and make a positive contribution to the Borough. The 
development standards set out in Policy DM02 are regarded as key for Barnet to deliver 
the highest standards of urban design. 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) 
- Provides detailed guidance that supplements policies in the adopted Local Plan, and sets 
out how sustainable development will be delivered in Barnet. 
 
5.2 Main issues for consideration 
The main issues for consideration in this case are: 
- Whether harm would be caused to the character and appearance of the street scene and 
the wider locality; 
- Whether harm would be caused to the living conditions of neighbouring residents. 
 
5.3 Assessment of proposals 
 
It is noted that a previous application for the demolition of the existing dwelling and the 
construction of 2 no. dwellings was refused under application 15/00023/FUL, dated 
02/03/2015. The reason for refusal included that 'the proposed replacement dwellings, by 
reason of their design, bulk, siting, mass and scale would result in a cramped, overly 

26



prominent form of development and would constitute an overdevelopment of the site. They 
would not preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the area and would be 
detrimental to the character and appearance of the streetscene and the locality.' The 
changes from the previously refused application include the following: 
 
- A reduction in width of the proposed new dwellings. 
- Increase in the depth of the proposed new dwellings. 
- The proposed new dwellings now include basement areas. 
  
As part of this submission the proposed new dwellings have been reduced in width, and 
now each dwelling provides a gap of at least 2 metres to their respective side boundaries 
to No. 64 and No. 56 Uphill Road. There is also now a minimum gap of 4 metres between 
the two proposed new dwellings. As such, it is now considered that the proposed new 
dwellings would not appear as cramped within the plot and would now sit comfortably 
within the site. It is noted that the depth of the buildings have increased since the previous 
application and would project closer to the main road by approximately 0.7 metres in the 
case of plot 1 and 0.4 metres in the case of plot 2. However, it is considered that the 
reduction in the width of the two dwellings overcomes the concerns of the visual 
prominence the proposed new dwellings would have on the character and appearance of 
the streetscene. In addition, it is noted that the design of the proposed dwellings has not 
significantly altered since the previously refused application and would not entirely reflect 
the design of the surrounding dwellings. However, as stated in the previous application, 
the street benefits from a varied architectural vernacular, and the design of the proposed 
buildings is no longer considered to be a justifiable reason for refusal in itself, given that 
the proposed buildings are now considered to relate sympathetically in size and siting in 
relation to surrounding properties and sit comfortably within the site. 
 
The basement areas would be located directly beneath the proposed footprint of the 
dwellings and would not be visually apparent when viewed from the street or any 
neighbouring property. Given that the proposed basements would be located directly 
under the proposed dwellings and that the area is not located within a flood risk zone, it is 
not considered that the proposal would result in significant drainage issues or a substantial 
increase in flooding within the area or to neighbouring properties. 
 
The proposed rear balcony areas, given the orientation of the proposed new dwellings, 
would face away from existing neighbouring properties. As such, it is not considered that 
the proposal would result in overlooking and loss of privacy to existing neighbouring 
occupiers. The splayed orientation of the proposed balcony areas would however afford 
views into the rear garden areas of each opposite new dwelling. However, given the 
separation between the proposed dwellings, would only allow minimal views and is not 
considered to result in overlooking and loss of privacy over and above what would 
normally be considered acceptable.  
 
The proposed units would each be dual aspect and would each have sufficient overall floor 
area and bedroom sizes to comply with the relevant minimum requirements. Adequate 
outdoor amenity space would be provided to comply with the relevant standards. As such, 
it is considered that the proposed units would provide a satisfactory quality of 
accommodation for future occupants. 
 
No issues were raised during the previous application with regards to the loss of Trees. 
Although, the proposal would be increasing minimally in depth, closer to protected trees, it 
is not considered that, subject to tree protection conditions, that the proposal would result 
in the loss of trees of special amenity value. 

27



 
5.4 Response to Public Consultation 
 
Mainly addressed in appraisal above. 
The Council's Highways department have no objection to the scheme subject to conditions 
relating to sight lines for the proposed new access. 
 
6. Equality and Diversity Issues 
The proposal does not conflict with either Barnet Council's Equalities Policy or the 
commitments set in the Equality Scheme and supports the Council in meeting its statutory 
equality responsibilities. 
 
7. Conclusion 
The proposal is considered to accord with the requirements of the Development Plan and 
is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
 

 

28



 

 
Location 117-125 West Hendon Broadway London NW9 7BP    

 
Reference: 

 
15/00750/FUL 

 
Received: 6th February 2015 

  Accepted: 18th February 2015 

Ward: West Hendon Expiry 20th May 2015 

    

Applicant:  

    

Proposal: 

Construction of a new building up to 5-storeys high comprising of 43 
no. self-contained flats (Class C3) and 437sqm of (Class A1) retail 
space at ground floor level with basement parking.  Associated 
landscaping, refuse stores, cycle stores and amenity space 

 
 

Recommendation: Approve subject to s106 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION I: 
 
That the applicant and any other person having a requisite interest be invited to enter by 
way of an agreement into a planning obligation under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and any other legislation which is considered necessary for the 
purposes seeking to secure the following: 
 
1. Paying the council’s legal and professional costs of preparing the Agreement and 
any other enabling agreements; 
2. All obligations listed below to become enforceable in accordance with a timetable to 
be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority; 
 
 
 3. 3. Affordable Housing - Provision of 7 affordable housing units on the site, split up 
into the following types:  
 Affordable Rented Accommodation:  
    
 3 x 2 bedroom (3 person)  
 4 x 2 bedroom (4 person)   
   
 4. Monitoring of the Agreement - £500.00 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION II: 
That upon completion of the agreement the Assistant Director of Development 
Management and Building Control approve the planning application under delegated 
powers subject to the following conditions: 
 
 1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans: 1031-PL-100 PL2, 1031-PL-101 PL2, 1031-PL-102 PL2, 1031-
PL-103 PL2, 1031-PL-200 PL2, 1031-PL-250 PL2, 1031-PL-300 PL2, 1-PL-350 PL2, 
1031-PL-400 PL2, 1031-PL-450 PL2, 1031-PL-500 PL2, 1031-PL-600 PL2, 1031-PL-601 

AGENDA ITEM 9

29



PL2, 1031-PL-602 PL1, 1031-PL-605 PL2, 1031-PL-606 PL2, 1031-PL-607 PL1, 1031-PL-
610 PL2, 1031-PL-611 PL2, 1031-PL-615 PL2, 1031-PL-DOC02.  
   
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning and so 
as to ensure that the development is carried out fully in accordance with the plans as 
assessed in accordance with Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core Strategy 
DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policy DM01 of the Local Plan Development 
Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012). 
 
 2 This development must be begun within three years from the date of this 
permission.  
   
 Reason: To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 
 3 a) No development shall take place until details of the levels of the building(s), 
road(s) and footpath(s) in relation to the adjoining land and highway(s) and any other 
changes proposed in the levels of the site have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  
   
 b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the details 
as approved under this condition and retained as such thereafter.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out at suitable levels in relation 
to the highway and adjoining land having regard to drainage, gradient of access, the safety 
and amenities of users of the site, the amenities of the area and the health of any trees or 
vegetation in accordance with policies CS NPPF, CS1, CS5 and CS7 of the Local Plan 
Core Strategy (adopted September 2012), Policies DM01, DM04 and DM17 of the 
Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), and Policies 7.4, 
7.5, 7.6 and 7.21 of the London Plan 2011. 
 
 4 a) No development other than demolition works shall take place until details of the 
materials to be used for the external surfaces of the building(s) and hard surfaced areas 
hereby approved have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
   
 b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the 
materials as approved under this condition.  
   
 Reason: To safeguard the character and visual amenities of the site and wider area 
and to ensure that the building is constructed in accordance with Policies CS NPPF and 
CS1 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012), Policy DM01 of the 
Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policies 1.1, 7.4, 
7.5 and 7.6 of the London Plan 2011. 
 
 5 Before the building hereby permitted is first occupied the proposed first and second 
floor windows in the south-west elevation facing Esmar Crescent shall be glazed with 
obscure glass only and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter and shall be 
permanently fixed shut with only a fanlight opening.  
   
 Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of adjoining 
residential properties in accordance with Policy DM01 of the Development Management 

30



Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and the Residential Design Guidance SPD 
(adopted April 2013). 
 
 6 a) Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied, details of privacy 
screens to be installed shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
   
 b) The screens shall be installed in accordance with the details approved under this 
condition before first occupation or the use is commenced and retained as such thereafter.
  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice the amenity of future 
occupiers or the character of the area in accordance with policies DM01 and DM02 of the 
Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), the Residential 
Design Guidance SPD (adopted April 2013) and the Sustainable Design and Construction 
SPD (adopted April 2013). 
 
 7 Part 1  
   
 Before development commences other than for investigative work:  
   
 A desktop study (Preliminary Risk Assessment) shall be carried out which shall 
include the identification of previous uses, potential contaminants that might be expected, 
given those uses, and other relevant information. Using this information, a diagrammatical 
representation (Conceptual Model) for the site of all potential contaminant sources, 
pathways and receptors shall be produced.  The desktop study (Preliminary Risk 
Assessment) and Conceptual Model shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. If 
the desktop study and Conceptual Model indicate no risk of harm, development shall not 
commence until approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
   
 If the desktop study and Conceptual Model indicate any risk of harm, a site 
investigation shall be designed for the site using information obtained from the desktop 
study and Conceptual Model. This shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority prior to that investigation being carried out on site. The 
investigation must be comprehensive enough to enable:  
 - a risk assessment to be undertaken,  
 - refinement of the Conceptual Model, and  
 - the development of a Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements.  
   
 The risk assessment and refined Conceptual Model shall be submitted, along with 
the site investigation report, to the Local Planning Authority.  
   
 If the risk assessment and refined Conceptual Model indicate any risk of harm, a 
Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements, using the information obtained 
from the site investigation, and also detailing any post remedial monitoring shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to that 
remediation being carried out on site.   
   
 Part 2  
   
 Where remediation of contamination on the site is required completion of the 
remediation detailed in the method statement shall be carried out and a report that 
provides verification that the required works have been carried out, shall be submitted to, 

31



and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is 
occupied.  
   
 Reason: To ensure the development can be implemented and occupied with 
adequate regard for environmental and public safety in accordance with Policy CS NPPF 
of the Local Plan Core Strategy DPD (adopted September 2012), DM04 of the 
Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), the Sustainable 
Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) and 5.21 of the London Plan 2011. 
 
 8 a) No development shall take place until details of mitigation measures to show how 
the development will be constructed/adapted so as to provide sufficient air borne and 
structure borne sound insulation against internally/externally generated noise and vibration 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
   
 This sound insulation shall ensure that the levels of noise generated from the retail 
use as measured within habitable rooms of the development shall be no higher than 
30dB(A) from 7am to 11pm and 30dB(A) in bedrooms from 11pm to 7am.  
   
 The report shall include all calculations and baseline data, and be set out so that 
the Local Planning Authority can fully audit the report and critically analyse the content and 
recommendations.  
   
 b) The mitigation measures as approved under this condition shall be implemented 
in their entirety prior to the commencement of the use or first occupation of the 
development and retained as such thereafter.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
amenities of occupiers of the residential properties in accordance with Policies DM04 of 
the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), the Sustainable 
Design and Construction SPD, and 7.15 of the London Plan 2011. 
 
 9 No development shall take place until car parking is provided in accordance with a 
scheme to be submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority and spaces shall not 
be used for any purpose other than parking of vehicles in connection with the approved 
development.  The parking layout should include provision of disable parking spaces for all 
elements of the development.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that adequate and satisfactory provision is made for the parking 
of vehicles in the interests of pedestrian and highway safety and the free flow of traffic in 
accordance with Policies  polices London Borough of Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of 
Core Strategy (Adopted) September 2012 and Policy DM17 of Development Management 
Policies (Adopted) September 2012. 
 
10 The applicant should submit a scheme showing details of the proposed internal 
roads layout for approval, including layout and ramp gradient details for internal roads and 
access to car parks, details of swept paths and turning movements for Heavy Goods 
Vehicles and Refuse Collection vehicles entering the site and that Heavy Goods Vehicles 
can turn around within the internal roads.  Although the Council will not consider the 
proposed internal roads for adoption as public highways, the internal roads submitted 
details should include specification of carriageway construction to adoptable standards to 
allow for refuse vehicles to enter the site.   
   

32



   Reason:   To ensure the safe form of access to the development to conform to 
London Borough of Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of Core Strategy (Adopted) September 
2012 and Policy DM17 of Development Management Policies (Adopted) September 2012. 
 
11 No site works or works on this development including demolition or construction 
work shall commence until a Demolition and Construction Management Plan has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  All works must be 
carried out in full in accordance with the approved details unless previously agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
   
 Reason:  In the interests of highway safety in accordance with London Borough of 
Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of Core Strategy (Adopted) September 2012 and Policy 
DM17 of Development Management Policies (Adopted) September 2012.  
 
12 The approved development shall make provision for cycle parking and cycle 
storage facilities in accordance with a scheme that shall be submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority. Such spaces shall be permanently retained thereafter.  
   
 Reason: In the interests of promoting cycling as a mode of transport in accordance 
with London Borough of Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of Core Strategy (Adopted) 
September 2012 and Policy DM17 of Development Management Policies (Adopted) 
September 2012.  
 
13 Before the permitted development is occupied a full Delivery and Servicing Plan 
(DSP) shall be submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning Authority.   
   
 Reason:    In the interest of highway safety in accordance with London Borough of 
Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of Core Strategy (Adopted) September 2012 and Policy 
DM17 of Development Management Policies (Adopted) September 2012.  
 
14 a) Notwithstanding the details submitted with the application and otherwise hereby 
approved, no development other than demolition works shall take place until details of (i) A 
Refuse and Recycling Collection Strategy, which includes details of the collection 
arrangements and whether or not refuse and recycling collections would be carried out by 
the Council or an alternative service provider, (ii) Details of the enclosures, screened 
facilities and internal areas of the proposed building to be used for the storage of recycling 
containers, wheeled refuse bins and any other refuse storage containers where applicable, 
and (iii) Plans showing satisfactory points of collection for refuse and recycling, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
   
 b) The development shall be implemented and the refuse and recycling facilities 
provided in full accordance with the information approved under this condition before the 
development is first occupied and the development shall be managed in accordance with 
the information approved under this condition in perpetuity once occupation of the site has 
commenced.  
   
 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance for the development and satisfactory 
accessibility; and to protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policy CS14 of 
the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012), Policy DM01 of the Development 
Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and the Sustainable Design and 
Construction SPD (adopted April 2013). 
 

33



15 Prior to the occupation of the development a Waiver of liability and indemnity 
agreement in relation to the non-adopted roads in each phase within the development 
must be signed by the developer and be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  This is to indemnify the Council against any claims for consequential 
damage caused to private roads arising from and/ or in connection with the collection of 
waste by the Council from the premises.  
   
 Reason:   To ensure that the access is satisfactory in terms of highway safety 
development and to protect the amenity of the area and in accordance with London 
Borough of Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of Core Strategy (Adopted) September 2012 
and Policy DM17 of Development Management Policies (Adopted) September 2012 
 
16 Provisions shall be made within the site to ensure that all vehicles associated with 
the construction of the development hereby approved are properly washed and cleaned to 
prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the development does not cause danger and 
inconvenience to users of the adjoining pavement and highway. 
 
17 a) No site works (including any temporary enabling works, site clearance and 
demolition) or development shall be commenced until details of a Landscape Management 
Plan for all landscaped areas for a minimum period of 25 years have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
   
 b) The Landscape Management Plan shall include details of long term design 
objectives, management responsibilities, maintenance schedules and replacement 
planting provisions for existing retained trees and any new soft landscaping to be planted 
as part of the approved landscaping scheme.  
   
 c) The approved Landscape Management Plan shall be implemented in full in 
accordance with details approved under this condition.   
   
 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development in accordance 
with Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 
2012), Policies CS5 and CS7 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012) 
and Policy 7.21 of the London Plan 2011. 
 
18 a) A scheme of hard and soft landscaping, including details of existing trees to be 
retained and size, species, planting heights, densities and positions of any soft 
landscaping, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
before the development hereby permitted is commenced.  
   
 b) All work comprised in the approved scheme of landscaping shall be carried out 
before the end of the first planting and seeding season following occupation of any part of 
the buildings or completion of the development, whichever is sooner, or commencement of 
the use.  
   
 c) Any existing tree shown to be retained or trees or shrubs to be planted as part of 
the approved landscaping scheme which are removed, die, become severely damaged or 
diseased within five years of the completion of development shall be replaced with trees or 
shrubs of appropriate size and species in the next planting season.  
   

34



 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development in accordance 
with Policies CS5 and CS7 of the Local Plan Core Strategy DPD (adopted September 
2012), Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 
2012), the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) and 7.21 of the 
London Plan 2011. 
 
19 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced (Excluding demolition), 
details of the location and details of proposed playspace to be provided shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
implemented in accordance with these details and they shall be permanently retained 
thereafter.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that playspace is provided on the site in accordance with the 
Mayor's London Plan. 
 
20 a) No development other than demolition works shall take place until details of all 
extraction and ventilation equipment to be installed as part of the development have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall 
include all calculations and baseline data, and be set out so that the Local Planning 
Authority can fully audit the report and critically analyse the content and recommendations.
  
   
 b) The development shall be implemented in accordance with details approved 
under this condition before first occupation or the use is commenced and retained as such 
thereafter.  
   
 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance for the development and satisfactory 
accessibility; and to protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policy DM04 of 
the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policy CS13 
of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012). 
 
21 The level of noise emitted from the plant hereby approved shall be at least 5dB(A) 
below the background level, as measured from any point 1 metre outside the window of 
any room of a neighbouring residential property.  
   
 If the noise emitted has a distinguishable, discrete continuous note (whine, hiss, 
screech, hum) and/or distinct impulse (bangs, clicks, clatters, thumps), then it shall be at 
least 10dB(A) below the background level, as measured from any point 1 metre outside 
the window of any room of a neighbouring residential property.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
amenities of occupiers of neighbouring properties in accordance with Policies DM04 of the 
Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and 7.15 of the 
London Plan 2011. 
 
22 a) No development other than demolition work shall take place until details of the 
location within the development and specification of the 4 units to be constructed to be 
either wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for residents who are wheelchair users 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
   
 The specification provided for those identified units shall provide sufficient 
particulars to demonstrate how the units will be constructed to be either wheelchair 
accessible or easily adaptable for residents who are wheelchair users.  

35



   
 b) The development shall be implemented in full accordance with the details as 
approved prior to the first occupation of the development and retained as such thereafter.
  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the development is accessible for all members of the 
community and to comply with Policy DM02 of the Development Management Policies 
DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policies 3.8 and 7.2 of the London Plan 2011. 
 
23 a) Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise hereby 
approved, the development hereby approved shall not be first occupied or brought into use 
until details of all acoustic walls, fencing and other acoustic barriers to be erected on the 
site have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing.  
   
 b) The details approved by this condition shall be implemented in their entirety prior 
to the commencement of the use or first occupation of the development and retained as 
such thereafter.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
enjoyment of the occupiers of their homes in accordance with Policy DM04 of the 
Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policy 7.15 of 
the London Plan 2011. 
 
24 Before the development hereby permitted is occupied, details of a scheme for the 
ecological enhancement of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with these 
details and permanently maintained thereafter.  
   
 Reason: To comply with policy DM16 and secure ecological improvements to the 
site. 
 
25 The development shall not be occupied until a scheme detailing the measures 
suggested by the Energy Statement has been approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with these details and 
permanently maintained thereafter.  
   
 Reason: In order for the development to comply with policy 5.2 of the Mayor's 
London Plan and policy DM04 of the Development Management Policies 2012. 
 
26 a) No development other than demolition work shall take place unless and until a 
Drainage Strategy detailing all drainage works to be carried out in respect of the 
development herby approved and all Sustainable Urban Drainage System features to be 
included in the scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This shall include details of details of surface and foul water drainage 
systems and attenuation capacity.  
   
 b) The development herby approved shall not be first occupied or brought into use 
until the drainage works and Sustainable Urban Drainage System features approved under 
this condition have been implemented in their entirety.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the development provides appropriate drainage 
infrastructure and to comply with Policy CS13 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted 

36



September 2012), the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) and 
Policies 5.13 and 5.14 of the London Plan 2011. 
 
27 a) The site shall not be brought into use or first occupied until details of the means 
of enclosure, including boundary treatments, have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
   
 b) The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details approved 
as part of this condition before first occupation or the use is commenced and retained as 
such thereafter.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
appearance of the locality and/or the amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential 
properties and to confine access to the permitted points in the interest of the flow of traffic 
and conditions of general safety on the adjoining highway in accordance with Policies 
DM01, DM03, DM17 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 
2012), and Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted 
September 2012). 
 
28 Prior to the first occupation of the new dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) hereby 
approved they shall all have been constructed to meet and achieve all the relevant criteria 
of 'The Lifetime Homes' standard (or the equivalent standard in such measure of 
accessibility and adaptability for house design which may replace that scheme in future). 
The development shall be maintained as such in perpetuity thereafter.   
   
 Reason: To ensure the development meets the needs of its future occupiers and to 
comply with the requirements of policies 3.8 and 7.2 of the London Plan (2015) and policy 
DM02 of the Barnet Development Management Polices document (2012). 
 
29 Prior to the first occupation of the new dwellinghouses (Use Class C3) hereby 
approved they shall all have been constructed to have 100% of the water supplied to them 
by the mains water infrastructure provided through a water meter or water meters and 
each new dwelling shall be constructed to include water saving and efficiency measures 
so that mains water consumption would meet a standard of 105 litres per head per day or 
less. The development shall be maintained as such in perpetuity thereafter.      
   
 Reason: To encourage the efficient use of water in accordance with policy CS13 of 
the Barnet Core Strategy (2012) and policy 5.15 of the London Plan (2015 
 
30 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved it shall be 
constructed incorporating carbon dioxide emission reduction measures which achieve an 
improvement of not less than 40% in carbon dioxide emissions when compared to a 
building constructed to comply with the minimum Target Emission Rate requirements of 
the 2010 Building Regulations. The development shall be maintained as such in perpetuity 
thereafter.   
   
 Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and minimises carbon 
dioxide emissions and to comply with the requirements of policies DM01 and DM02 of the 
Barnet Development Management Polices document (2012) and policies 5.2 and 5.3 of 
the London Plan (2015). 
 

37



31 No development (Other than Demolition) shall commence until the proposed 
amenity areas and car park to the rear of the site are laid out in full accordance with the 
approved plans.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the proposed amenity spaces and parking areas are 
provided. 
 
32 Before the development hereby permitted commences details of the Electric Vehicle 
Charging Points with 20% active and 20% passive shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
   
 Reason: To ensure that the Electric Vehicular Charging provision is in accordance 
with the London Plan requirements. 
 
33 The part of the ground floor of the front block as shown on the apporved plans shall 
be used for retail use and for no other purpose (including any other purpose in Class A1 of 
the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order, 1987, or in any 
provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that 
Order with or without modification).  
   
 Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control of the type of 
use within the category in order to safeguard the amenities of the area. 
 
34 Prior to the occupation of each phases hereby approved, a Car Parking 
Management Plan including details of the allocation of parking spaces, parking 
enforcement and operation of the barriers shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority:  
   
 Reason: To ensure that parking is provided and managed in line with the council's 
standards in the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with London 
Borough of Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of Core Strategy (Adopted) September 2012 
and Policy DM17 of Development Management Policies (Adopted) September 2012. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION III: 
 
 
 0 RECOMMENDATION III  
   
 That if the above agreement has not been completed or a unilateral undertaking 
has not been submitted by 10/12/2015 unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Assistant 
Director of Development Management and Building Control REFUSE the application under 
delegated powers for the following reason(s):  
   
 The proposed development does not include a formal undertaking to provide on site 
affordable housing. The proposal would therefore not provide the maximum amount of 
affordable housing in compliance with policy DM10 of the Development Management 
Policies, Supplementary Planning Document: Affordable Housing, and the Planning 
Obligations SPD (adopted April 2013). 
 
 
 
 

38



 
 
 
 
Informative(s): 
 
 
 
 1 Waste Comments  
 No impact piling shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the depth 

and type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which such piling will 
be carried out, including measures to prevent and minimise the potential for 
damage to subsurface sewerage infrastructure, and the programme for the works) 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority in 
consultation with Thames Water. Any piling must be undertaken in accordance with 
the terms of the approved piling method statement. Reason: The proposed works 
will be in close proximity to underground sewerage utility infrastructure. Piling has 
the potential to impact on local underground sewerage utility infrastructure. The 
applicant is advised to contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0800 009 
3921 to discuss the details of the piling method statement.  

 Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure capacity, 
we would not have any objection to the above planning application.  

 Surface Water Drainage - With regard to surface water drainage it is the 
responsibility of a developer to make proper provision for drainage to ground, water 
courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of surface water it is recommended that the 
applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the 
receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to 
connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and 
combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary.  

 Connections are not permitted for the removal of groundwater. Where the developer 
proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water 
Developer Services will be required. They can be contacted on 0800 009 3921. 
Reason - to ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not be 
detrimental to the existing sewerage system.  

 Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be fitted in all car 
parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of petrol / oil 
interceptors could result in oil-polluted discharges entering local watercourses.  

 Water Comments  
 On the basis of information provided, Thames Water would advise that with regard 

to water infrastructure capacity, we would not have any objection to the above 
planning application.  

   
 Thames Water recommend the following informative be attached to this planning 

permission. Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure 
of 10m head (approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it 
leaves Thames Waters pipes. 

 
 2 In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF, the Local Planning 

Authority (LPA) takes a positive and proactive approach to development proposals, 
focused on solutions. The LPA has produced planning policies and written guidance 
to assist applicants when submitting applications. These are all available on the 
Council's website. A pre-application advice service is also offered and the Applicant 
engaged with this prior to the submissions of this application. The LPA has 

39



negotiated with the applicant/agent where necessary during the application process 
to ensure that the proposed development is in accordance with the Development 
Plan. 

 
 3 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) applies to all 'chargeable development'. 

This is defined as development of one or more additional units, and / or an increase 
to existing floor space of more than 100 sq m. Details of how the calculations work 
are provided in guidance documents on the Planning Portal at 
www.planningportal.gov.uk/cil.  

   
 The Mayor of London adopted a CIL charge on 1st April 2012 setting a rate of £35 

per sq m on all forms of development in Barnet except for education and health 
developments which are exempt from this charge. Your planning application has 
been assessed at this time as liable for a £226,310.00 payment under Mayoral CIL.
  

   
 The London Borough of Barnet adopted a CIL charge on 1st May 2013 setting a 

rate of £135 per sq m on residential and retail development in its area of authority. 
All other uses and ancillary car parking are exempt from this charge. Your planning 
application has therefore been assessed at this time as liable for a £690,660.00 
payment under Barnet CIL.  

   
 Please note that Indexation will be added in line with Regulation 40 of Community 

Infrastructure Levy.  
   
 Liability for CIL will be recorded to the register of Local Land Charges as a legal 

charge upon your site payable should you commence development. Receipts of the 
Mayoral CIL charge are collected by the London Borough of Barnet on behalf of the 
Mayor of London; receipts are passed across to Transport for London to support 
Crossrail, London's highest infrastructure priority.  

   
 You will be sent a 'Liability Notice' that provides full details of the charge and to 

whom it has been apportioned for payment. If you wish to identify named parties 
other than the applicant for this permission as the liable party for paying this levy, 
please submit to the Council an 'Assumption of Liability' notice, which is also 
available from the Planning Portal website.  

   
 The CIL becomes payable upon commencement of development. You are required 

to submit a 'Notice of Commencement' to the Council's CIL Team prior to 
commencing on site, and failure to provide such information at the due date will 
incur both surcharges and penalty interest. There are various other charges and 
surcharges that may apply if you fail to meet other statutory requirements relating to 
CIL, such requirements will all be set out in the Liability Notice you will receive. You 
may wish to seek professional planning advice to ensure that you comply fully with 
the requirements of CIL Regulations.  

   
 If you have a specific question or matter you need to discuss with the CIL team, or 

you fail to receive a 'Liability Notice' from the Council within 1 month of this grant of 
planning permission, please email us at: cil@barnet.gov.uk.  

   
 Relief or Exemption from CIL:  
   

40



 If social housing or charitable relief applies to your development or your 
development falls within one of the following categories then this may reduce the 
final amount you are required to pay; such relief must be applied for prior to 
commencement of development using the 'Claiming Exemption or Relief' form 
available from the Planning Portal website: www.planningportal.gov.uk/cil.  

   
 You can apply for relief or exemption under the following categories:  
   
 1. Charity: If you are a charity, intend to use the development for social housing or 

feel that there are exception circumstances affecting your development, you may be 
eligible for a reduction (partial or entire) in this CIL Liability. Please see the 
documentation published by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6314/
19021101.pdf  

   
 2. Residential Annexes or Extensions: You can apply for exemption or relief to the 

collecting authority in accordance with Regulation 42(B) of Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010), as amended before commencement of the 
chargeable development.  

   
 3. Self Build: Application can be made to the collecting authority provided you 

comply with the regulation as detailed in the legislation.gov.uk  
   
 Please visit 

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil 
for further details on exemption and relief. 

 
 4 Applicants and agents are encouraged to sign up to the Considerate Contractors 

Scheme (www.ccscheme.org.uk) whereby general standards of work are raised and 
the condition and safety of the Borough's streets and pavements are improved. 

 
 5 The applicant is reminded that the corner of the site is required for road widening 

works as part of a Compulsory Purchase Order as part of the West Hendon 
Regeneration Scheme. 

 
 6 A Planning Obligation under Section 106 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 

(as amended) relates to this permission. 
 
 7 The applicant is advised that any development or conversion which necessitates 

the removal, changing, or creation of an address or addresses must be officially 
registered by the Council through the formal 'Street Naming and Numbering' 
process.  

   
 The London Borough of Barnet is the Street Naming and Numbering Authority and 

is the only organisation that can create or change addresses within its boundaries. 
Applications are the responsibility of the developer or householder who wish to 
have an address created or amended.  

   
 Occupiers of properties which have not been formally registered can face a 

multitude of issues such as problems with deliveries, rejection of banking / 
insurance applications, problems accessing key council services and most 
importantly delays in an emergency situation.  

41



   
 Further details and the application form can be downloaded from: 

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/naming-and-numbering-applic-form.pdf or requested from 
the Street Naming and Numbering Team via street.naming@barnet.gov.uk or by 
telephoning 0208 359 7294. 

 
 
  

42



Officer’s Assessment 
 
1. Site Description 
 
The site is a plot of land on the corner of West Hendon Broadway and Cool Oak Lane. The 
site covers an area of approximately 0.4 hectares. 
 
The site was previously occupied by Raw Spice restaurant and the Welsh Harp Public 
House. 
 
The site is not located within any specific designation other than it is located within the 
Brent Cross and West Hendon Development Framework Area. 
 
The applicant has submitted a site location plan which includes the area between 1-4 
Esmar Crescent and the site. It is understood that there is a dispute over the ownership of 
this land and that this is subject to a land tribunal application.  
 
2. Site History 
 
W00017D - Single-storey side and front extension and formation of car park at rear. - 
Approved - 17/06/1987 
 
W00017N - Use of first floor as function room and ancillary facilities to the existing 
publichouse, alterations to front elevation and provision of metal fire escape staircase. - 
Approved - 09/10/1996 
 
W00017P - Use of first floor as a function room with a modification of condition 2 of 
planning permission W00017N to allow it to be used until 1.00 am on Monday to Thursday 
mornings and 2.00 am on Friday to Sunday mornings. - 13.05.1997 
 
W00017S - Continued use of first floor as a function room with a modification of condition 
02 of planning permission W00017N to allow it to be used until 1.00 am on Monday to 
Thursday mornings and 2.00 am on Friday to Saturday - Refused - 29.06.1999 
 
W00017T/00 - Continued use of first floor as a function room with a modification to 
condition 02 of planning permission W00017N to allow it to be used until 11.00p.m 
Monday to Wednesday; 1.00a.m Thursday; 2.00a.m Friday and Saturday and 11.30p.m on 
Sunday using the Cool Oak Lane access at these later times. - Approved - 29.06.2000 
 
W00017U/07 - Variation of Condition 2 of planning permission W00017T/07 to allow use of 
first floor function room to be used until 01.30hrs Sunday to Thursday, and until 02.30 
Friday and Saturday. - Refused - 14.08.2007 
 
W00017V/07 - Continued use as hand car wash and valet, open from Monday to Saturday 
8:00am to 6:00pm and Sunday 10:00am to 4:00pm. - Approved - 10.01.2008 
 
3. Proposal 
 
The proposals are for 'Construction of a new building up to 5-storeys high comprising of 43 
no. self-contained flats (Class C3) and 437sqm of (Class A1) retail space at ground floor 
level with basement parking.  Associated landscaping, refuse stores, cycle stores and 
amenity space' 
 

43



The proposed building would step down from West Hendon Broadway to the west. It would 
be five storeys on the corner of West Hendon Broadway and Cool Oak Lane. This would 
reduce to four stories centrally, and further to two storeys where it is closest to houses on 
Cool Oak Lane.  
The proposed building would be approximately 15.6m high at its highest point fronting 
West Hendon Broadway and approximately 7.8m at its lowest point on Cool Oak Lane. 
 
The proposed materials include buff London Stock brick, blue/grey facing brickwork, grey 
curtain walling with spandrel panels, and glazed elements to the roof, and zinc cladding to 
the corner of the building. 
 
Further to the initial submission the applicant has made the following changes to the 
scheme: 
 
- Reduction in units from 47 to 43. 
- Overall reduction in height. 
- Design amendments to middle block roof. 
- Elevational changes, including removal of portion of end block on West Hendon 
Broadway to allow for sky gap, removal of balconies and addition of rear block windows. 
- Alterations to material palette and further elaboration on design principles. 
- Addition of Play Area to site. 
- Clarification of amenity area and parking provision. 
 
4. Public Consultation 
Consultation letters were sent to 301 neighbouring properties. 
 
To the initial plans, 25 responses have been received, comprising 25 letters of objection. 
 
The objections received can be summarised as follows: 
- Lack of parking 
- Overcrowding 
- Noise 
- Impact on foundations 
- Pollution 
- Impact on local character 
- There is already a lot of development in West Hendon 
- Overlooking 
- Loss of light/Overshadowing 
- Loss of privacy 
- Loss of trees and open space 
 
 
Further to the initial consultation the scheme has been amended to reduce the size of the 
proposed building and reduce the number of flats. 3 further objections were received. 
 
These objections can be summarised as follows: 
 
-Adverse possession of land dispute 
-The amendment drawings presented for planning is still based on original boundary with 
landscape commercial car park and access road to scale 
-If in case Land Registry decision comes in my side any further amendment presented for 
planning must be approved on condition that it maintains land scape commercial parking 

44



and access road in present size and scale and moves in single block to new boundary 
without any change in dimensions doing otherwise would compromise my privicy 
- The amended proposals do not appear to satisfy the issues that have already been 
raised by the Council. 
- The serious issue of privacy for residents of Esmar Crescent has not been properly 
addressed. Whilst some balconies appear to have been removed, these do not appear to 
have been taken from the area overlooking Esmar Crescent. There does not appear to be 
an actual reduction in height of the proposed development 
- the plans have been amended to reduce the parking spaces. This is a bizarre decision; 
where do the architects expect residents to park? The overflow will have a huge 
detrimental effect on the surrounding streets, where parking is already an issue. This is 
before the issue of commercial parking is taken into account. 
 
Consultation has been undertaken with the following: 
 
Highways - No objection 
Environmental Health – Following the submission of additional information are satisfied 
that the proposals are acceptable. 
TfL -  request that the provision of car parking is reduced to be in line with London Plan 
(2015) standards- 1 and 2 bed units should have less than 1 car parking spaces in areas 
of good PTAL.  
20% of all parking spaces should have active Electric Vehicle Charging Points (EVCPs) 
and 20% passive EVCPs. 
TfL are satisfied with the provision of Blue Badge spaces. 
TfL request an increase in cycle parking spaces in line with London Plan (2015) standards 
of 1 space per studio and 1 bed and 2 spaces all other dwellings and 1 space per 250sqm 
A1. 
London Fire Brigade – Requested clarification regarding dry risers. The applicant has 
illustrated the proposed dry riser positions within the stair cores in accordance with 
Building Regulations Approved Document B Section B5. 
London Borough of Brent - No objection 
 
5. Planning Considerations 
 
5.1 Policy Context 
 
National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Practice Guidance 
The determination of planning applications is made mindful of Central Government advice 
and the Local Plan for the area. It is recognised that Local Planning Authorities must 
determine applications in accordance with the statutory Development Plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise, and that the planning system does not exist to protect 
the private interests of one person against another.  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published on 27 March 2012. This is 
a key part of the Governments reforms to make the planning system less complex and 
more accessible, and to promote sustainable growth. 
 
The NPPF states that 'good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for 
people'. The NPPF retains a presumption in favour of sustainable development. This 
applies unless any adverse impacts of a development would 'significantly and 
demonstrably' outweigh the benefits. 
 

45



The Mayor's London Plan 2015 
The London Development Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it sets out a 
fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the 
development of the capital to 2050. It forms part of the development plan for Greater 
London and is recognised in the NPPF as part of the development plan.  
 
The London Plan provides a unified framework for strategies that are designed to ensure 
that all Londoners benefit from sustainable improvements to their quality of life. 
 
The following policies are considered relevant: 
 
Policy 3.3 – Increasing Housing Supply 
Policy 3.4 – Optimising Housing Potential 
Policy 3.5 – Quality and Design of Housing Developments 
Policy 3.8 – Housing Choice 
Policy 3.9 – Mixed and Balanced Communities 
Policy 3.10 – Definition of Affordable Housing 
Policy 3.11 – Affordable Housing targets 
Policy 3.12 – Negotiating Affordable Housing 
Policy 3.13 – Affordable Housing Threshold 
Policy 4.3 – Mixed Use Development and Offices 
Policy 4.7 – Retail and Town Centre development 
Policy 5.2 – Minimising carbon dioxide emissions 
Policy 5.3 – Sustainable design and construction 
Policy 7.1 – Building London’s Neighbourhoods and Communities 
Policy 7.2 – An Inclusive Environment 
Policy 7.3 – Designing Out Crime 
Policy 7.4 – Local Character 
Policy 7.5 – Public Realm 
Policy 7.6 – Architecture 
Policy 7.14 – Improving air quality 
Policy 7.15 – Reducing Noise 
Policy 7.18 – Protecting local open space and addressing local deficiency 
Policy 7.19 – Biodiversity and access to nature 
Policy 8.1 – Implementation 
Policy 8.2 – Planning Obligations 
Policy 8.3 – Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
Barnet's Local Plan (2012) 
Barnet's Local Plan is made up of a suite of documents including the Core Strategy and 
Development Management Policies Development Plan Documents. Both were adopted in 
September 2012. 
- Relevant Core Strategy Policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5, CS9, CS13, CS14, CS15 
- Relevant Development Management Policies: DM01, DM02, DM03, DM04, DM08, 
DM10, DM11, DM12, DM16, DM17 
 
The Council's approach to development as set out in Policy DM01 is to minimise the 
impact on the local environment and to ensure that occupiers of new developments as well 
as neighbouring occupiers enjoy a high standard of amenity. Policy DM01 states that all 
development should represent high quality design and should be designed to allow for 
adequate daylight, sunlight, privacy and outlook for adjoining occupiers. Policy DM02 
states that where appropriate, development will be expected to demonstrate compliance to 
minimum amenity standards and make a positive contribution to the Borough. The 

46



development standards set out in Policy DM02 are regarded as key for Barnet to deliver 
the highest standards of urban design. 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) 
- Provides detailed guidance that supplements policies in the adopted Local Plan, and sets 
out how sustainable development will be delivered in Barnet. 
 
5.2 Main issues for consideration 
The main issues for consideration in this case are: 
 
- Whether the principle of the development including the loss of the existing use is 
considered acceptable 
- Whether the development makes acceptable provision for affordable housing 
- Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on the character and 
appearance of the area 
- Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on the amenities of 
neighbouring and future occupiers 
- Whether the proposals would harm highway or pedestrian safety 
- Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on ecology  
- Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on drainage 
- Sustainability Issues 
 
5.3 Assessment of proposals 
 
Whether the principle of the development including the loss of the existing use is 
considered acceptable 
 
Land Use 
 
Policy DM11 states that significant new retail and other appropriate town centre uses 
outside the town centres or any expansion of existing out of centre sites will be strongly 
resisted unless they can meet the sequential approach and tests set out in the NPPF or 
are identified in an adopted Area Action Plan. Edge of centre proposals will not normally 
be appropriate and therefore should demonstrate why they are not locating in a town 
centre site. The property has previously been used as a restaurant under A3 use class. A 
certificate of lawfulness exists for the conversion of the premises to A1 Class (Retail). This 
would represent a fall-back position that should be given significant weight. The proposed 
development would provide 437 square metres of retail floorspace, and this is less than 
the 922 square metres that could be converted lawfully. It is therefore considered that it 
would be unreasonable to refuse planning permission on the grounds that the town centre 
use is not appropriate in the area. 
Density 
 
The proposals are for development consisting of a retail use at ground floor with flats 
above.  
 
The scheme has been amended to reduce it to 43 flats. 
 
The development would consist of 5no. 1 bedroom  2 person units, 25no. 2 bed 3 person 
units, 13no. 2 bedroom 4 person units. It is considered that this is an appropriate mix for 
the site, taking into account its location close to West Hendon Town Centre. 
 

47



The site (0.32 hectares) is located in a urban area and is located in an area of PTAL rating 
3. The London Plan advises that development should be at 45-170 units/hectare. The 
proposals appear to be at 134 units/hectare which indicates that the development is 
appropriate in density. 
 
Whether the development makes acceptable provision for affordable housing 
 
Policy DM10 states that:  
 
Having regard to the borough-wide target that 40% of housing provision should be 
affordable, 
the maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing will be required on site, subject to 
viability, from all new sites providing 10 or more units gross or covering an area of 0.4 
hectares or more. 
 
The proposals are accompanied by a viability report from 'Affordable 106 Ltd'. This has 
been independently assessed by DVS. 
The proposals make provision for 7 affordable units within the development. This 
constitutes a percentage of 16.3% provision within the development. Whilst this is below 
the borough wide target of 40%, policy DM10 states that viability will be considered. This 
has been independently reviewed by DVS and they consider that the affordable housing 
offer would be reasonable. 
 
It is therefore considered that the proposals would comply with policy DM10 in respect of 
affordable housing provision, as the maximum amount of affordable housing would be 
provided taking into account the viability of the development. 
 
Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on the character and appearance 
of the area 
 
The height and massing of the rear block closest to Cool Oak Lane has been lowered in 
height following discussions with officers, and the design of the building altered so that it 
would step down more to the south to West Hendon Broadway. The proposed external 
materials have been revised to provide a simplified approach. 
 
Layout 
 
The proposals involve the segregation of commercial and residential parking, so that 
residential parking is accessed from Cool Oak Lane, and commercial parking from West 
Hendon Broadway.  
 
Amenity space would be provided in the form of a grassed area split over two levels, 
centrally located.  
 
There would be additional soft landscaping to the frontage facing Cool Oak Lane. Soft 
landscaping would be provided to both the west and south boundaries. 
 
Scale/Massing  
 
The proposed building would be five storeys with additional set back roof level, on the 
corner of West Hendon Broadway and Cool Oak Lane. To the west, this would step down 
to four storeys, and then again to two storeys further to the west. 

48



It is considered that the height of the tallest part of the building at five storeys would be in 
keeping with the height of buildings on West Hendon Broadway, which includes three 
storey traditional building with substantial roof levels, which are of comparable height to 
the proposed building. 
 
The proposed building would step down to three storeys to the south, to reflect the height 
of the neighbouring Hyundai garage. 
 
The proposed building as revised would step down to two storeys to the west of the site. It 
is considered that this would respect the more suburban scale of houses on Esmar 
Crescent and Cool Oak Lane. 
 
External Appearance 
 
The proposed materials include buff London Stock brick, blue/grey facing brickwork, grey 
curtain walling with spandrel panels, and glazed elements to the roof, and zinc cladding to 
the corner of the building. These have been amended following discussion with the case 
officer. 
 
There are a variety of materials present in the locality, including a mixture of red bricks, 
buff bricks and rendered buildings on West Hendon Broadway. The proposals would 
include a mixture of bricks, which would take some reference from the surrounding area 
but also would add more modern influence. It is considered that the proposed materials 
would ensure a suitable appearance to the development subject to a condition ensuring 
suitable details are submitted. 
 
Landscaping 
 
The applicant proposes a soft landscaping scheme including planting to the Cool Oak 
Lane frontage, to provide a buffer to the rear of the parking area to the houses on Esmar 
Crescent, and to the amenity space areas. 
 
It is suggested that a condition is attached to any grant of planning permission in order to 
expand on this detail and secure this as part of the development, and provide 
management proposals. 
 
Overall it is considered that the proposed development would respect the character and 
appearance of the streetscene and general locality. 
 
Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on the amenities of neighbouring 
and future occupiers 
 
Neighbouring Amenity 
 
Daylight/Sunlight 
 
At it’s nearest point where it is two storeys, the building would be approximately 17m from 
the boundary with no.1 Esmar Crescent, and a distance of 27m from the rear wall of the 
house itself. 
 
At four storey level, the building would be a further 9m away, and at five storeys, a further 
23m above this. 
 

49



There is a decrease in levels across the site, so that land drops to the west towards Esmar 
Crescent. 
 
The applicant has provided a Daylight and Sunlight Report to accompany the application. 
In terms of the impact on neighbouring residents, this suggests that there would not be 
harmful loss of sunlight or daylight to neighbouring occupiers. 
 
Taking into account the distance of the building away and that it has been stepped away 
from the boundary with properties on Esmar Crescent, it is not considered that it is likely 
that there would be a materially harmful loss of daylight or sunlight to the windows or 
gardens of these properties. 
 
Given the distance away, it is not considered that there would be harmful loss of light to 
residential properties to the east and north on West Hendon Broadway. 
 
It is not considered that the proposed development would cause a materially harmful loss 
of daylight or sunlight or overshadowing to any neighbouring residents. 
 
Outlook and Visual Impact 
 
Given the distance of the building to neighbouring residential properties, it is not 
considered that it would cause harmful loss of outlook or appear overbearing or unduly 
dominant as perceived from neighbouring windows and gardens. 
 
Privacy 
 
The proposed development would comply with the overlooking distances with the 
Supplementary Planning Document: Sustainable Design and Construction. This states that 
in new residential development there should be a minimum distance of 21 m between 
properties with facing windows to habitable rooms to avoid overlooking, and 10.5 m to a 
neighbouring garden. The proposals would significantly exceed these standards.  
A condition is suggested to ensure that the side windows and gardens of the building 
facing Esmar Crescent, are obscure glazed and fixed shut, and that screening is provided 
to the proposed terraces. 
 
Noise and Disturbance 
 
The proposals would involve a reduction in the commercial floorspace when compared to 
the existing restaurant. It should be acknowledged that the existing use would have been 
likely to generate a degree of activity and it is known that there were some issues with late 
night activity as can be inferred from the history of the site. Taking these matters into 
consideration it is not considered that the proposed retail use would be likely to generate a 
harmful level of noise and disturbance as perceived from neighbouring residential 
properties. 
 
It is acknowledged that the use of the site for 43 residential units, principally accessed 
from Cool Oak Lane has potential to generate some noise and disturbance. The building 
itself has been sited away from the boundary with these properties, and any impact is 
likely to be confined to the use of parking spaces adjacent to the boundary, and to a lesser 
extent the use of amenity areas and noise escape from windows. Taking into account the 
existing use of the property, the distance of the property, it is not considered that this 
impact is likely to be materially harmful to the residential amenities of surrounding 
occupiers. 

50



 
Future Occupiers Amenity 
 
The proposed dwellings would all comply with internal space standards within the Mayor’s 
London Plan. 
 
The proposals would provide 681 square metres of amenity space for future residents. 
This would comply with standards within the Supplementary Planning Document on 
Sustainable Design and Construction, which requires 5 square metres of amenity space 
for each habitable room within the development. 
 
It is noted that the development would take the form of a number of flats accessible from 
corridors. The majority of flats would be dual aspect however a minority of the units would 
be single aspect. Taking into account the relatively high level of amenity in other regards it 
is not considered that this would warrant refusal of the development. 
 
Air and Noise Quality 
 
The front of the site facing West Hendon Broadway suffers from poor air quality. The 
applicant has confirmed that it will seek to adopt the AQA recommendations from the 
report provided and that the detailed design / working drawings will incorporate the air 
quality mitigation “whole house ventilation” system, and secured by way of a suitably 
worded planning condition.  The details of the mitigation system to be submitted to the 
Council prior to commencement of development. This is considered acceptable. 
 
The revised scheme does not have any balconies to West Hendon Broadway or Cool Oak 
Lane.  Terraces are only at roof level and will be screened with glass balustrading with 
terrace areas protected by 1800mm screens, which will assist mitigation of sound 
attenuation.  All residents will have access to use the rear communal amenity space.  
 
Whether the proposals would harm highway or pedestrian safety 
 
The site is located on the A5 West Hendon Broadway at the junction with Cool Oak Lane.  
The A5- West Hendon Broadway is part of the Strategic Road Network (SRN) and a bus 
route. 
 
The site is located, in proximity to local amenities and bus routes.  Several waiting 
restrictions operate on the highway network surrounding the site; including no waiting or 
loading at any time in West Hendon Broadway along the site's frontage and single yellow 
line operating Monday to Saturday 8 am to 6 30 pm along the site's frontage in Cool Oak 
Lane.  Resident parking bays and single yellow lines restrictions are in place on the 
opposite side of Cool Oak Lane along the site's frontage, both operating Monday to Friday 
10 am to 11 am.     
 
The application site is currently occupied by an A3 restaurant use with an area of 922 sqm 
and car sales display.   A car wash also operates on the site.  Two points of access are 
provided from the A5 and an additional vehicle access is provided from Cool Oak Lane. 
 
Public Transport Accessibility Levels (PTALs) are used to assess the extent and ease of 
access by public transport.  The range of accessibility levels is defined as PTAL 1/2 - low 
accessibility, PTAL 3/4 medium accessibility and PTAL 5/6 - high accessibility.  
 
The site is located within a PTAL 3 area, which is a medium accessibility level. 

51



 
A total of 47 parking spaces are proposed for the residential use, 43 in the underground 
car park and 4 at surface level.  A further 4 spaces at surface level will be provided for staff 
of the retail element of the proposal. 
 
Access 
 
The existing vehicle accesses will be removed. Two new vehicle accesses are proposed, 
one from West Hendon Broadway and one from Cool Oak Lane.  Vehicle access for the 
commercial element, servicing and refuse collection will operate in a one-way direction 
with entry from the new access at West Hendon Broadway and exit via the new Cool Oak 
Lane access.  The new Cool Oak Lane access will also provide entry and exit for the 
residential use vehicles including basement car park.  Barriers within the site are proposed 
to manage the use of the commercial and residential parking areas. 
 
The existing vehicle accesses which will no longer be used should be reinstated to footway 
level. 
A condition will be required to submit a scheme showing details of the proposed internal 
roads for approval, including layout and gradient of internal roads and access to car parks, 
undercroft height clearance, swept paths for heavy goods vehicles at both accesses, 
details of the operation of the access road including proposed barriers.  Although the 
council will not consider the proposed internal roads for adoption as a public highway,  the 
internal roads submitted details should include specification of carriageway construction to 
adoptable standards to allow for refuse vehicles to enter the site.   
 
Refuse 
 
The internal road layout should be designed to ensure that refuse vehicles will be able to 
stop within 10 metres of refuse collection points. The submitted refuse collection location 
for the commercial use is within 10 metres of the refuse collection vehicle route and is 
therefore acceptable.  Residential refuse collection arrangements including collection 
location must be submitted for approval. 
Details of carriageway construction to adoptable standards to allow for refuse vehicles to 
enter the site must be submitted for approval. 
 
Parking 
 
The Maximum Parking Standards as set out in the Development Management Policies 
(DMP) of the Barnet Local Plan approved in September 2012 are as follows: 
For 4 or more bedroom units  - 2.0 to 1.5 parking spaces per unit 
For 2 and 3 bedroom units  - 1.5 to 1.0 parking spaces per unit 
For 1 bedroom units   - 1.0 to less than 1 parking space per unit 
 
This equates to parking provision for the proposed residential units ranging between 36 - 
65 parking spaces to meet the parking standards set out in the DMP approved September 
2012. The proposal includes provision of 47 residential spaces.  The parking provision is in 
accordance with Local Plan standards and is considered acceptable at this location. The 
parking provision should include a minimum of 4 spaces suitable for disable use.  A 
minimum of 20% active and 20% passive electric car charging spaces must be provided 
for the residential element of the proposal  
 
A total of 4 additional spaces, two of which are suitable for disable use are proposed for 
commercial use staff.  A Car Park management Condition is included to manage the 

52



allocation of spaces. The parking standards in the London Plan recommend that a 
maximum of 8 to 14 parking spaces are provided for a retail use development in a medium 
accessibility level area. 
 
Taking into consideration several factors including parking controls in the vicinity of the 
site, the parking provision for this use, in principle is considered adequate for the expected 
demand, in conjunction with a Travel Plan.  However further details should be provided 
regarding the estimated use of the commercial premises including number of staff, 
expected trip generation, travel modes and parking demand. 
 
The proposal includes 47 cycle parking spaces for residents. 
The London Plan standards included in the Further alterations to the London Plan 
recommend for residential developments a cycle parking provision of 1 space per 1 and 
bedroom units, 2 spaces per 2+ units plus 1 space per 40 units for visitor use.  This would 
equate to a total of 83 residents spaces and 1 visitors spaces.  Therefore the residential 
cycle parking provision should be revised to meet this requirement.  
For A1 use the recommendation is for 1 short stay space per 40 sqm and 1 long stay 
space per 175 sqm.  This equates to the provision of 10 short stay and 3 long stay cycle 
parking spaces. A total of 24 cycle parking spaces are proposed for the commercial use 
which meets the required minimum standards.  
 
Trip Generation 
 
As there is no customer parking associated with the commercial use there will be minimal 
trip generation to be accommodated other than the occasional operational trip and four 
staff car parking spaces, therefore vehicle trips at peak hours associated with this use 
have not been included. 
 
The assessment of existing and expected trip generation indicates an increase of 3 
vehicles in the AM peak and a reduction of 19 trips in the PM peak.  Therefore a minimal 
increase is expected in the Am peak likely to be imperceptible and a reduction in afternoon 
peak which would be likely to have a positive effect on the local highway. 
 
Site vehicle accesses construction and any necessary associated works on the public 
highway including reinstatement of footway and redundant vehicle accesses. 
 
The application is recommended for approval on highway grounds 
 
Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on ecology 
 
The Raw Spice site is predominantly hard paved with limited tree and shrub cover.  The 
development proposals would require demolition of existing buildings and clearance of 
much of the site, whilst retaining tree and outgrown shrub cover to the south-west 
boundary. The development will introduce extensive new planting measures, increasing in 
planting diversity, to provide a range of immediate and long term wildlife habitat and food 
sources. The applicant has stated a willingness to provide bird boxes within the new 
development on the retained and new trees. 
The proposals are considered to comply with policy DM16 of the Development 
Management Policies. 
Whether the proposals would have an acceptable impact on drainage 
 
Much of the existing site is car park hard standing or building with a positive surface water 
drainage connection to the main public surface water drainage system.  

53



The proposed development will utilise the existing drainage connection supported by on-
site attenuation.  SUDs drainage solutions will also be investigated and these include the 
following: 
 
Permeable Paving – the proposal includes soft landscaping, and new hardstandings for 
access roads and car parking will utilise permeable paving finishes. 
Green Roofs – Provision of a living roof scheme on part of the development.  
Soakaways - Soakaways provided in the vicinity of the building to discharge roof runoff to 
ground and provide storage for all storm events. 
 
A condition will be attached to require details of details of surface and foul water drainage 
systems and attenuation capacity. 
The existing restaurant has a foul drainage connection to the main public sewer 
network.  The manhole positions around the building are identified on the supporting 
topographical survey.  It is proposed that the new development will utilise the existing 
connection.    
A condition is suggested in order to ensure that suitable information in relation to drainage 
is provided. 
 
Sustainability Issues 
 
The proposals would need to comply with policy 5.2 of the Mayor’s London Plan which 
sets out requirements in terms of minimising Carbon Dioxide emission. The applicant has 
provided an energy statement which states that the proposals would achieve 34% 
improvement in emissions over the 2013 regulations using solar PV and/or Solar Thermal 
technology. This would comply with the requirements of the Mayor’s London Plan in terms 
of being Lean, Clean and Green.  
 
Conditions are suggested to ensure that the development is London Plan compliant in 
terms of reductions in emissions, water usage, and Lifetime Homes compliance. 
 
5.4 Response to Public Consultation 
 
Generally Addressed in main report 
 
Lack of parking - The parking provision would comply with Local Plan policy 
Overcrowding - The proposed density of the development would be London Plan 
compliant 
Noise - The noise resulting from the development would be considered acceptable taking 
into account the existing use of the site 
Impact on foundations - This is principally a building regulations issue 
Pollution The proposals would not themselves harmfully increase air or noise pollution 
Impact on local character Addressed in main report 
There is already a lot of development in West Hendon It is acknowledged that there is a lot 
of development taking place as a result of the West Hendon Regeneration Scheme. 
However, the proposals would make provision for residential development which are 
required by the Barnet Core Strategy and Development Plan 
Overlooking - The proposals would be policy compliant and would not result in harmful 
overlooking 
Loss of light/Overshadowing - The proposals would not result in harmful loss of light or 
overshadowing 
Loss of trees and open space Trees on the site are not subject to a Tree Preservation 
Order and the scheme makes provision for soft landscaping and the retention of trees 

54



Adverse possession of land dispute This is acknowledged. At the present time a decision 
on this has not been reached by the courts. The applicant is advised that if the courts find 
in favour of the residents then this scheme could not be implemented 
 
6. Equality and Diversity Issues 
 
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, which came into force on 5th April 2011, imposes 
important duties on public authorities in the exercise of their functions, including a duty to 
have regard to the need to: 
“(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it.” 
For the purposes of this obligation the term “protected characteristic” includes: 
- age; 
- disability; 
- gender reassignment; 
- pregnancy and maternity; 
- race; 
- religion or belief; 
- sex; 
- sexual orientation. 
 
Officers have in considering this application and preparing this report had regard to the 
requirements of this section and have concluded that a decision to grant planning 
permission for this proposed development will comply with the Council’s statutory duty 
under this important legislation. 
 
7. Conclusion 
 
Taking the above issues into account, it is considered that the development would provide 
significant additional housing within the Borough for which there is known demand. The 
proposals would fit appropriately within the streetscene, have acceptable impact on 
highway safety, and would not significantly harm the amenities of neighbouring occupiers. 
The planning application is recommended for APPROVAL. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55



 

56



 

 
 
 

DELEGATED REPORT  
 
 

Case reference: 15/04283/HSE Case Officer: Dominic Dear 

    

Valid Date: 9th July 2015 Area Team South Area Planning Team 

Expiry Date: 3rd September 2015 Ward: West Hendon 

Site Visit Date: 17th July 2015 Applicant: Mrs Apinya Medina 

Recommendation 
Date: 

3rd September 2015   

Site Address: 42 Sevington Road London NW4 3RX    

Proposal: 
Part two storey side and rear extension, new front porch, roof extension 
involving, side and rear dormer windows, 3no rooflights to front to facilitate a 
loft conversion. 

 
Officer’s Assessment 
 
1. Site Description 
 
The application relates to a semi-detached single family dwelling house. 
 
The property is not listed and does not lie within a conservation area. 
 
2. Site History 
Reference: H/00793/11 
Address: 42 Sevington Road, London, NW4 3RX 
Decision: Approved subject to conditions 
Decision Date:   11 April 2011 
Description: Ground floor rear infill extension.  Provision of decking area. 
 
3. Proposal 
 
- Part single part two storey side and rear extension 
- New front porch 
- Roof extension involving side and rear dormer windows 
- 3no rooflights 
 
4. Public Consultation 
 
Consultation letters were sent to 7 neighbouring properties. 
10 letters of objection were received: 
 
- Overdevelopment 
- Loss of light 

AGENDA ITEM 10

57



- Single storey rear extension extends beyond established building line 
- Loss of privacy 
- Out of character 
- Overlooking 
- Loss of a view 
- Issues relating to parking 
 
5. Planning Considerations 
 
5.1 Policy Context 
 
National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Practice Guidance 
The determination of planning applications is made mindful of Central Government advice 
and the Local Plan for the area. It is recognised that Local Planning Authorities must 
determine applications in accordance with the statutory Development Plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise, and that the planning system does not exist to protect 
the private interests of one person against another.  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published on 27 March 2012. This is 
a key part of the Governments reforms to make the planning system less complex and 
more accessible, and to promote sustainable growth. 
 
The NPPF states that 'good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for 
people'. The NPPF retains a presumption in favour of sustainable development. This 
applies unless any adverse impacts of a development would 'significantly and 
demonstrably' outweigh the benefits. 
 
The Mayor's London Plan 2015 
The London Development Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it sets out a 
fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the 
development of the capital to 2050. It forms part of the development plan for Greater 
London and is recognised in the NPPF as part of the development plan.  
 
The London Plan provides a unified framework for strategies that are designed to ensure 
that all Londoners benefit from sustainable improvements to their quality of life. 
 
Barnet's Local Plan (2012) 
Barnet's Local Plan is made up of a suite of documents including the Core Strategy and 
Development Management Policies Development Plan Documents. Both were adopted in 
September 2012. 
- Relevant Core Strategy Policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5. 
- Relevant Development Management Policies: DM01, DM02. 
 
The Council's approach to extensions as set out in Policy DM01 is to minimise their impact 
on the local environment and to ensure that occupiers of new developments as well as 
neighbouring occupiers enjoy a high standard of amenity. Policy DM01 states that all 
development should represent high quality design and should be designed to allow for 
adequate daylight, sunlight, privacy and outlook for adjoining occupiers. Policy DM02 
states that where appropriate, development will be expected to demonstrate compliance to 
minimum amenity standards and make a positive contribution to the Borough. The 
development standards set out in Policy DM02 are regarded as key for Barnet to deliver 
the highest standards of urban design. 

58



 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
Residential Design Guidance SPD (adopted April 2013) 
Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) 
- Provides detailed guidance that supplements policies in the adopted Local Plan, and sets 
out how sustainable development will be delivered in Barnet. 
 
5.2 Main issues for consideration 
The main issues for consideration in this case are: 
- Whether harm would be caused to the character and appearance of the existing building, 
the street scene and the wider locality; 
- Whether harm would be caused to the living conditions of neighbouring residents. 
 
5.3 Assessment of proposals 
 
Two storey side extension: 
 
Barnet's Residential Design Guidance includes explicit reference to two storey side 
extensions. Specifically that: 
 
- The 1st floor flank wall should be set in from the boundary by 1m (2m from the 
neighbouring 1st floor. 
- The roof should be set down from the main ridge by a minimum of 0.5m 
- The front wall at first floor level should be set back from the main house by 1m 
 
The proposed scheme would adhere to all the above points. 
 
In terms of character no. 21, 35, 56 and 100 Sevington Road have previously been 
granted planning permission and built two storey side extensions. Bearing this in mind it is 
not considered that an additional two storey side extension would cause significant harm 
to the character of the area. 
In terms of impact to the amenities of neighbouring occupiers the flank wall windows to no. 
40 Sevington Road do not appear to serve habitable rooms, reducing the possibility of 
overshadowing or the  extension appearing overbearing to the neighbouring property. In 
order to reduce the potential for overlooking and maintain privacy the proposed first floor 
window in the flank wall will be obscure glazed and permanently fixed shut with only a fan 
light opening. 
 
Two storey rear extension: 
 
Barnet's Design Guidance also makes reference to two storey rear extensions: 
 
- They should not exceed 3m in depth. 
- They should be further than two metres from the boundary 
 
In this instance the proposed extension fails to adhere to the point but there are material 
considerations which render this aspect acceptable. The neighbouring occupier at no. 40 
Sevington Road benefits from a 1m deep single storey rear projection running along the 
boundary with the application site. Through negotiations with the applicant the depth of the 
1st floor rear extension has been reduced and now extends beyond the rear elevation of 
the neighbouring occupier by 800mm (less than half the 3m sited above) and is considered 
to successfully compensate for any potential harm caused by the extensions proximity to 
the boundary. 

59



In relation to no. 38 Sevington Road, the first floor would be 3.6m deep and 3.5m away 
from the boundary. It is considered that this distance would ensure that there would be no 
significant impact in terms of overshadowing or overbearing impact on the amenities of the 
occupiers of that property. 
 
 
In terms of character, as above, no. 21, 35, 56 and 100 Sevington Road have previously 
been granted planning permission and built two storey rear extensions. Bearing this in 
mind, it is not considered that an additional two storey rear extension would cause 
significant harm to the character of the area to warrant refusal. 
 
Ground floor rear extension: 
 
- Ground floor extensions should not exceed 3.5 in depth 
 
The ground floor rear extension adheres to this guidance and would preserve the 
amenities of neighbouring occupiers as well as the character of the area. 
 
Side dormer windows: 
 
Through negotiations with the applicant the dormer windows were reduced in scale and 
are now considered to be subordinate features of the roof thus preserving the character 
the area.  To prevent issues of overlooking or loss of privacy a condition has been 
attached to obscure glaze this side window. 
 
Front porch 
 
- Should not exceed 3m in height 
- Should not exceed 3m in area 
- Should not be within 2m of any highway 
 
This element adheres to Barnet's Guidance and is considered acceptable. 
 
5.4 Response to Public Consultation 
 
Overdevelopment:  The proposed works are not of a sufficiently large scale to be 
considered as overdevelopment. 
Loss of light: Addressed in 'assessment of proposals.' 
Single storey rear extension extends beyond established building line: There does not 
appear to be a clearly established building line on this side of Sevington Road. It should 
also be noted that single family dwelling houses can build single storey rear extensions 
(subject to certain restrictions) without the benefit of planning permission. 
Loss of privacy: Addressed in 'assessment of proposals.' 
Out of character: Addressed in 'assessment of proposals.' 
Overlooking: Addressed in 'assessment of proposals.' 
Loss of a view: As there is not right to a view this is not a material consideration. 
Issues relating to parking: No changes to parking are proposed. 
 
 
6. Equality and Diversity Issues 
 

60



The proposal does not conflict with either Barnet Council's Equalities Policy or the 
commitments set in the Equality Scheme and supports the Council in meeting its statutory 
equality responsibilities. 
 
7. Conclusion 
 
Having taken all material considerations into account, it is considered that subject to 
compliance with the attached conditions, the proposed development would have an 
acceptable impact on the character and appearance of the application site, the street 
scene and the locality. The development is not considered to have an adverse impact on 
the amenities of neighbouring occupiers. This application is therefore recommended for 
approval. 

 

61



Officer’s Recommendation/Preview of Decision 
 
Approve subject to conditions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans:  
   
 - PL/01B, PL/02, PL/03B, PL/04B, PL/05B, PL/06A, PL/07B, PL/08B, PL/09B and 

location plan (received: 03/09/15).  
   
   
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning and so 

as to ensure that the development is carried out fully in accordance with the plans 
as assessed in accordance with Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core 
Strategy DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policy DM01 of the Local Plan 
Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012). 

 
 2 This development must be begun within three years from the date of this 

permission.  
   
 Reason: To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004. 
 
 3 The materials to be used in the external surfaces of the building(s) shall match 

those used in the existing building(s).  
   
 Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the building and surrounding area in 

accordance with Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies DPD 
(adopted September 2012) and Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core 
Strategy (adopted September 2012). 

 
 4 The roof of the extension hereby permitted shall only be used in connection with the 

repair and maintenance of the building and shall at no time be converted to or used 
as a balcony, roof garden or similar amenity or sitting out area.  

   
 Reason: To ensure that the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining properties are 

not prejudiced by overlooking in accordance with policy DM01 of the Development 
Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012). 

 
 5 Notwithstanding the provisions of any development order made under Section 59 of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting 
that Order) no windows or doors, other than those expressly authorised by this 
permission, shall be placed at any time in the side elevation facing no. 40 Sevington 
Road.  

   

62



 Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of adjoining 
residential properties in accordance with policy DM01 of the Development 
Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012). 

 
 6 Before the building hereby permitted is first occupied the proposed first floor window 

in the side elevation and side dormer window facing 40 Sevington Road shall be 
glazed with obscure glass only and shall be permanently retained as such 
thereafter and shall be permanently fixed shut with only a fanlight opening.  

   
 Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of adjoining 

residential properties in accordance with Policy DM01 of the Development 
Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and the Residential Design 
Guidance SPD (adopted April 2013). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Informative(s): 
 

 
 
 1 In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF, the Local Planning 

Authority (LPA) takes a positive and proactive approach to development proposals, 
focused on solutions. The LPA has produced planning policies and written guidance 
to assist applicants when submitting applications. These are all available on the 
Council's website. A pre-application advice service is also offered. The LPA has 
negotiated with the applicant/agent where necessary during the application process 
to ensure that the proposed development is in accordance with the Development 
Plan. 

 
 
 
Signature of Officer 
with Delegated 
Authority 

         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

63



 

64



 

 
Location 36 Woolmead Avenue London NW9 7AY    

 

Reference: 

 

15/04227/HSE 

 
Received: 7th July 2015 

  Accepted: 13th July 2015 

Ward: West Hendon Expiry 7th September 2015 

    

Applicant: Mrs Uzma Khan 

    

Proposal: First floor rear extension 

 
 

Recommendation: Approve subject to conditions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 36WOOL/0715/01; 36WOOL/0715/02.  
   
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning and so 

as to ensure that the development is carried out fully in accordance with the plans 
as assessed in accordance with Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core 
Strategy DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policy DM01 of the Local Plan 
Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012). 

 
 2 This development must be begun within three years from the date of this 

permission.  
   
 Reason: To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004. 
 
 3 The materials to be used in the external surfaces of the building(s) shall match 

those used in the existing building(s).  
   
 Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the building and surrounding area in 

accordance with Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies DPD 
(adopted September 2012) and Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core 
Strategy (adopted September 2012). 

 
 4 Notwithstanding the provisions of any development order made under Section 59 of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting 
that Order) no windows or doors, other than those expressly authorised by this 
permission, shall be placed at any time in the side elevation(s), of the extension(s) 
hereby approved, facing the neighbouring properties.  

   

AGENDA ITEM 11

65



 Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of adjoining 
residential properties in accordance with policy DM01 of the Development 
Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012). 

 
 
 
 
 
Informative(s): 
 

 
 
 1 In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF, the Local Planning 

Authority (LPA) takes a positive and proactive approach to development proposals, 
focused on solutions. The LPA has produced planning policies and written guidance 
to assist applicants when submitting applications. These are all available on the 
Council's website. A pre-application advice service is also offered. The LPA has 
negotiated with the applicant/agent where necessary during the application process 
to ensure that the proposed development is in accordance with the Development 
Plan. 

 
 

66



 
Officer’s Assessment 
 
APPLICATION CALLED TO COMMITTEE BY CLLR ADAM LANGLEBEN - Concern 
about loss of light to neighbours 
 
1. Site Description 
 
The application site is a two storey semi-detached dwellinghouse located on Woodmead 
Ave; a residential road which lies within the West Hendon ward of the South area. 
 
The property already benefits from a single storey rear extension. 
 
The property is not listed and does not fall within a designated conservation area. 
 
2. Site History 
 
Reference: H/02604/14 
Address: 36 Woolmead Avenue, London, NW9 7AY 
Decision: Prior Approval Not Required 
Decision Date:   20 June 2014 
Description: Single storey rear extension with a proposed maximum depth of 6 metres 
from original rear wall, eaves height of 2.85 metres and maximum height of 2.95 metres. 
 
3. Proposal 
 
The application seeks consent for a first floor rear extension; measuring 2.9m in depth and 
set away 2.5m from the adjoining boundary and set away 2.3m from the non-adjoining 
property. 
 
4. Public Consultation 
 
Consultation letters were sent to 3 neighbouring properties. 
3 responses have been received, comprising 3 letters of objection 
 
The objections received can be summarised as follows: 
- loss of light and sun 
- invade neighbouring privacy 
- the ground floor extension is blocking light to neighbouring windows 
 
5. Planning Considerations 
 
5.1 Policy Context 
 
National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Practice Guidance 
 
The determination of planning applications is made mindful of Central Government advice 
and the Local Plan for the area. It is recognised that Local Planning Authorities must 
determine applications in accordance with the statutory Development Plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise, and that the planning system does not exist to protect 
the private interests of one person against another.  
 

67



The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published on 27 March 2012. This is 
a key part of the Governments reforms to make the planning system less complex and 
more accessible, and to promote sustainable growth. 
 
The NPPF states that 'good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for 
people'. The NPPF retains a presumption in favour of sustainable development. This 
applies unless any adverse impacts of a development would 'significantly and 
demonstrably' outweigh the benefits. 
 
The Mayor's London Plan 2015 
 
The London Development Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it sets out a 
fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the 
development of the capital to 2050. It forms part of the development plan for Greater 
London and is recognised in the NPPF as part of the development plan.  
 
The London Plan provides a unified framework for strategies that are designed to ensure 
that all Londoners benefit from sustainable improvements to their quality of life. 
 
Barnet's Local Plan (2012) 
 
Barnet's Local Plan is made up of a suite of documents including the Core Strategy and 
Development Management Policies Development Plan Documents. Both were adopted in 
September 2012. 
- Relevant Core Strategy Policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5. 
- Relevant Development Management Policies: DM01, DM02. 
 
The Council's approach to extensions as set out in Policy DM01 is to minimise their impact 
on the local environment and to ensure that occupiers of new developments as well as 
neighbouring occupiers enjoy a high standard of amenity. Policy DM01 states that all 
development should represent high quality design and should be designed to allow for 
adequate daylight, sunlight, privacy and outlook for adjoining occupiers. Policy DM02 
states that where appropriate, development will be expected to demonstrate compliance to 
minimum amenity standards and make a positive contribution to the Borough. The 
development standards set out in Policy DM02 are regarded as key for Barnet to deliver 
the highest standards of urban design. 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
 
Residential Design Guidance SPD (adopted April 2013) 
- Sets out information for applicants to help them design an extension to their property 
which would receive favourable consideration by the Local Planning Authority and was the 
subject of separate public consultation. The SPD states that large areas of Barnet are 
characterised by relatively low density suburban housing with an attractive mixture of 
terrace, semi detached and detached houses. The Council is committed to protecting, and 
where possible enhancing the character of the borough's residential areas and retaining 
an attractive street scene. 
- States that extensions should normally be subordinate to the original house, respect the 
original building and should not be overly dominant. Extensions should normally be 
consistent in regard to the form, scale and architectural style of the original building which 
can be achieved through respecting the proportions of the existing house and using an 
appropriate roof form. 

68



- In respect of amenity, states that extensions should not be overbearing or unduly 
obtrusive and care should be taken to ensure that they do not result in harmful loss of 
outlook, appear overbearing, or cause an increased sense of enclosure to adjoining 
properties. They should not reduce light to neighbouring windows to habitable rooms or 
cause significant overshadowing, and should not look out of place, overbearing or intrusive 
when viewed from surrounding areas. 
 
Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) 
- Provides detailed guidance that supplements policies in the adopted Local Plan, and sets 
out how sustainable development will be delivered in Barnet. 
 
5.2 Main issues for consideration 
 
The main issues for consideration in this case are: 
- Whether harm would be caused to the character and appearance of the existing building, 
the street scene and the wider locality; 
- Whether harm would be caused to the living conditions of neighbouring residents. 
 
5.3 Assessment of proposals 
 
The Council's approach to extensions as set out in Policy DM01 is to minimise their impact 
on the local environment and to ensure that occupiers of new developments as well as 
neighbouring occupiers enjoy a high standard of amenity.  
 
Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012 states that all 
development should represent high quality design and should be designed to allow for 
adequate daylight, sunlight, privacy and outlook for adjoining occupiers.  
 
Policy DM02 states that where appropriate, development will be expected to demonstrate 
compliance to minimum amenity standards and that development makes a positive 
contribution to the borough. The development standards set out in Policy DM02: 
Development Standards are regarded as key for Barnet to deliver the highest standards of 
urban design.  
 
Policy CS5 states that the Council 'will ensure that development in Barnet respects local 
context and distinctive local character creating places and buildings of high quality design'.   
 
The Council's adopted SPD 'Residential Design Guidance' (2013) states that extensions 
should normally be subordinate to the original house, respect the original building and 
should not be overly dominant; extensions should normally be consistent in regard to the 
form, scale and architectural style of the original building which can be achieved through 
respecting the proportions of the existing house and using an appropriate roof form. 
 
Para 14.13 of the SPD states that where there is a consistent and coherent architectural 
character, the extension should not detract from it. Any extension should sit comfortably 
with the main building and with neighbouring houses.  
 
The property was granted Prior Approval with neighbouring consultation for a 6m deep 
single storey rear extension; this has since been built on site. Although objections have 
been received in respect of the ground floor extension, it should be noted that the Prior 
Approval for Householder Extensions application goes through a neighbouring 
consultation and at the time of the application no objections had been received. 
 

69



This application seeks consent for the first floor extension. 
 
The limited depth of the extension and its distance to the rear facing first floor windows at 
both neighbouring properties is deemed sufficient enough as to not cause a detrimental 
impact on neighbouring amenity in regards to loss of light or overshadowing. Furthermore, 
given the orientation of the property and its relationship to the non-adjoining property, the 
proposal is not deemed to result in the loss of enjoyment of the neighbouring garden. In 
additon to this, the non-adjoining property is set slightly rearward than the host property 
and therefore the proposal would not extend considerably further rearward than the rear 
wall of this neighbouring property. 
 
The proposal, by reason of its size, design and considerable set down from the main ridge 
height, is deemed to result in a subordiante addition to the property whilst respecting the 
original proportions of the dwelling. In this regard, the proposal is not considered to 
adversely impact the character and and appearance of the aplication site or surrounding 
area. 
 
It should be noted that it is recommended that a condition be attached to the decision to 
ensure first floor side facing windows cannot be inserted without consent; this is to ensure 
that the amenities of both neighbouring occupiers are not compromised in regards to 
overlooking and loss of privacy. 
 
5.4 Response to Public Consultation 
 
Addressed in report above. 
 
6. Equality and Diversity Issues 
 
The proposal does not conflict with either Barnet Council's Equalities Policy or the 
commitments set in the Equality Scheme and supports the Council in meeting its statutory 
equality responsibilities. 
 
7. Conclusion 
 
Having taken all material considerations into account, it is considered that subject to 
compliance with the attached conditions, the proposed development would have an 
acceptable impact on the character and appearance of the application site, the street 
scene and the locality. The development is not considered to have an adverse impact on 
the amenities of neighbouring occupiers. This application is therefore recommended for 
approval. 

70



 

71



72

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Location 71 Vivian Avenue London NW4 3XE    

 

Reference: 

 

15/03894/FUL 

 
Received: 23rd June 2015 

  Accepted: 29th June 2015 

Ward: West Hendon Expiry 24th August 2015 

    

Applicant: Mr Y. Shahar 

    

Proposal: 
Part single, part two storey rear extension. First floor side extension. 
Conversion of existing garage into a study. Construction of basement with 
rear, front and side lightwells 

 
 

Recommendation: Approve subject to conditions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 71VA-PP3-01 Rev B; 71VA-PP3-02 Rev A  
   
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning and so 

as to ensure that the development is carried out fully in accordance with the plans 
as assessed in accordance with Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core 
Strategy DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policy DM01 of the Local Plan 
Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012). 

 
 2 This development must be begun within three years from the date of this 

permission.  
   
 Reason: To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004. 
 
 3 The materials to be used in the external surfaces of the building(s) shall match 

those used in the existing building(s).  
   
 Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the building and surrounding area in 

accordance with Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies DPD 
(adopted September 2012) and Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core 
Strategy (adopted September 2012). 

 
 4 The roof of the extension hereby permitted shall only be used in connection with the 

repair and maintenance of the building and shall at no time be converted to or used 
as a balcony, roof garden or similar amenity or sitting out area.  

   
 Reason: To ensure that the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining properties are 

not prejudiced by overlooking in accordance with policy DM01 of the Development 
Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012). 

AGENDA ITEM 12

73



 
 5 Notwithstanding the provisions of any development order made under Section 59 of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting 
that Order) no windows or doors, other than those expressly authorised by this 
permission, shall be placed at any time in the side elevation(s), of the extension(s) 
hereby approved, facing No. 69 & No. 73 Vivian Avenue.  

   
 Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of adjoining 

residential properties in accordance with policy DM01 of the Development 
Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012). 

 
 6 Before the building hereby permitted is first occupied the proposed window(s) in the 

side elevation facing No. 69 & No. 73 Vivian Avenue shall be glazed with obscure 
glass only and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter and shall be 
permanently fixed shut with only a fanlight opening.  

   
 Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of adjoining 

residential properties in accordance with Policy DM01 of the Development 
Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and the Residential Design 
Guidance SPD (adopted April 2013). 

 
 
 
 
 
Informative(s): 
 

 
 
 1 In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF, the Local Planning 

Authority (LPA) takes a positive and proactive approach to development proposals, 
focused on solutions. The LPA has produced planning policies and written guidance 
to assist applicants when submitting applications. These are all available on the 
Council's website. The LPA has negotiated with the applicant/agent where 
necessary during the application process to ensure that the proposed development 
is in accordance with the Development Plan. 

 
 2 WASTE COMMENTS  
   
 Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure capacity, 

we would not have any objection to the above planning application.  
   
 Surface Water Drainage - With regard to surface water drainage it is the 

responsibility of a developer to make proper provision for drainage to ground, water 
courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of surface water it is recommended that the 
applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the 
receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to 
connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and 
combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted 
for the removal of groundwater. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a 
public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be 
required. They can be contacted on 0800 009 3921. Reason - to ensure that the 

74



surface water discharge from the site shall not be detrimental to the existing 
sewerage system.   

   
 Thames Water requests that the Applicant should incorporate within their proposal, 

protection to the property by installing for example, a non-return valve or other 
suitable device to avoid the risk of backflow at a later date, on the assumption that 
the sewerage network may surcharge to ground level during storm conditions.   

   
 'We would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures he will undertake to 

minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer.  Groundwater discharges 
typically result from construction site dewatering, deep excavations, basement 
infiltration, borehole installation, testing and site remediation. Any discharge made 
without a permit is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the 
provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991.  Should the Local Planning Authority be 
minded to approve the planning application, Thames Water would like  the following 
informative attached to the planning permission:"A Groundwater Risk Management 
Permit from Thames Water will be required for discharging groundwater into a 
public sewer. Any discharge made without a permit is deemed illegal and may result 
in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991. We would 
expect the developer to demonstrate what measures he will undertake to minimise 
groundwater discharges into the public sewer.  Permit enquiries should be directed 
to Thames Water's Risk Management Team by telephoning 02035779483 or by 
emailing wwqriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk. Application forms should be 
completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality."  

   
 WATER COMMENTS  
   
 On the basis of information provided, Thames Water would advise that with regard 

to water infrastructure capacity, we would not have any objection to the above 
planning application.  

 
 

75



 
Officer’s Assessment 
 
1. Site Description 
 
The site property is a two storey detached single family dwellinghouse located on Vivian 
Avenue, close to its junction with Sevington Road. Vivian Avenue is a residential street 
with a varied and mixed typography of housing; it lies within the West Hendon ward of the 
South area. 
 
The property is not listed and does not fall within a designared conservation area. 
 
2. Site History 
 
Reference: 14/07337/PNH 
Address: 71 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3XE 
Decision: Withdrawn 
Decision Date:   4 December 2014 
Description: Single storey rear extension with a proposed depth of 5.45 metres from 
original rear wall and flat roof with a maximum height of 4 metres 
 
Reference: 14/07466/PNH 
Address: 71 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3XE 
Decision: Prior Approval Required and Refused 
Decision Date:   23 December 2014 
Description: Single storey rear extension with a proposed depth of 7.450 metres from 
original rear wall, eaves height of 3 metres and maximum heigh of 3 metres 
 
Reference: 15/00299/HSE 
Address: 71 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3XE 
Decision: Approved subject to conditions 
Decision Date:   7 April 2015 
Description: Part single, part two storey rear extension. First floor side extension 
 
Reference: 15/02712/FUL 
Address: 71 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3XE 
Decision: Withdrawn 
Decision Date:   22 June 2015 
Description: Conversion of garage into habitable room. Construction of basement including 
rear, front and side lightwells. 
 
Reference: H/05132/14 
Address: 71 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3XE 
Decision: Prior Approval Required and Refused 
Decision Date:   22 October 2014 
Description: Single storey rear extension with a proposed depth of 8.0 metres from original 
rear wall, eaves height of 3.850 metres and maximum height of 4.0 metres. 
 
Reference: H/05785/14 
Address: 71 Vivian Avenue, London, NW4 3XE 
Decision: Withdrawn 
Decision Date:   17 November 2014 

76



Description: Single storey rear extension with a proposed depth of 8.0 metres from original 
rear wall, eaves height of 2.55 metres and maximum height of 2.7 metres. 
 
3. Proposal 
 
The application seeks consent for the following works: 
 
- part single, part two storey rear extension 
- first floor side extension 
- conversion of the garage into a habitable room (study) 
- creation of a basement level with front, side and rear lightwells 
 
The rear extensions, first floor side extension and garage conversion have recently been 
granted planning permission at committee level (ref: 15/00299/HSE dated 7th April 2015) 
and therefore the subject of this application is primarily the principle of the basement and 
the lightwells; this is further discussed below. 
 
4. Public Consultation 
 
Consultation letters were sent to 25 neighbouring properties. 
19 responses have been received, comprising 10 letters of objection and 9 letters of 
support 
 
The objections received can be summarised as follows: 
- Basements increase energy consumption 
- no adequate outlook or sunlight from the basement 
- poor outlook from neighbouring properties 
- concerns regarding biodiversity 
- basements are not characteristic of Vivian Avenue 
- concerns regarding the impact of the basement on street infrastructure and subsidence 
- would be an eyesore 
- precedent will be set 
- increase in parking if extensions are to be approved 
- property will be converted into flats 
- concerns regarding the scale of development 
 
The representations received can be summarised as follows: 
- the proposal would enhance the street appearance 
- the building is currently in a bad condition and the proposal would benefit the building 
 
5. Planning Considerations 
 
5.1 Policy Context 
 
National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Practice Guidance 
 
The determination of planning applications is made mindful of Central Government advice 
and the Local Plan for the area. It is recognised that Local Planning Authorities must 
determine applications in accordance with the statutory Development Plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise, and that the planning system does not exist to protect 
the private interests of one person against another.  
 

77



The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published on 27 March 2012. This is 
a key part of the Governments reforms to make the planning system less complex and 
more accessible, and to promote sustainable growth. 
 
The NPPF states that 'good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for 
people'. The NPPF retains a presumption in favour of sustainable development. This 
applies unless any adverse impacts of a development would 'significantly and 
demonstrably' outweigh the benefits. 
 
The Mayor's London Plan 2015 
 
The London Development Plan is the overall strategic plan for London, and it sets out a 
fully integrated economic, environmental, transport and social framework for the 
development of the capital to 2050. It forms part of the development plan for Greater 
London and is recognised in the NPPF as part of the development plan.  
 
The London Plan provides a unified framework for strategies that are designed to ensure 
that all Londoners benefit from sustainable improvements to their quality of life. 
 
Barnet's Local Plan (2012) 
 
Barnet's Local Plan is made up of a suite of documents including the Core Strategy and 
Development Management Policies Development Plan Documents. Both were adopted in 
September 2012. 
- Relevant Core Strategy Policies: CS NPPF, CS1, CS5. 
- Relevant Development Management Policies: DM01, DM02. 
 
The Council's approach to extensions as set out in Policy DM01 is to minimise their impact 
on the local environment and to ensure that occupiers of new developments as well as 
neighbouring occupiers enjoy a high standard of amenity. Policy DM01 states that all 
development should represent high quality design and should be designed to allow for 
adequate daylight, sunlight, privacy and outlook for adjoining occupiers. Policy DM02 
states that where appropriate, development will be expected to demonstrate compliance to 
minimum amenity standards and make a positive contribution to the Borough. The 
development standards set out in Policy DM02 are regarded as key for Barnet to deliver 
the highest standards of urban design. 
 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
 
Residential Design Guidance SPD (adopted April 2013) 
- Sets out information for applicants to help them design an extension to their property 
which would receive favourable consideration by the Local Planning Authority and was the 
subject of separate public consultation. The SPD states that large areas of Barnet are 
characterised by relatively low density suburban housing with an attractive mixture of 
terrace, semi detached and detached houses. The Council is committed to protecting, and 
where possible enhancing the character of the borough's residential areas and retaining 
an attractive street scene. 
- States that extensions should normally be subordinate to the original house, respect the 
original building and should not be overly dominant. Extensions should normally be 
consistent in regard to the form, scale and architectural style of the original building which 
can be achieved through respecting the proportions of the existing house and using an 
appropriate roof form. 

78



- In respect of amenity, states that extensions should not be overbearing or unduly 
obtrusive and care should be taken to ensure that they do not result in harmful loss of 
outlook, appear overbearing, or cause an increased sense of enclosure to adjoining 
properties. They should not reduce light to neighbouring windows to habitable rooms or 
cause significant overshadowing, and should not look out of place, overbearing or intrusive 
when viewed from surrounding areas. 
 
Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) 
- Provides detailed guidance that supplements policies in the adopted Local Plan, and sets 
out how sustainable development will be delivered in Barnet. 
 
5.2 Main issues for consideration 
 
The main issues for consideration in this case are: 
- Whether harm would be caused to the character and appearance of the existing building, 
the street scene and the wider locality; 
- Whether harm would be caused to the living conditions of neighbouring residents. 
 
5.3 Assessment of proposals 
 
The Council's approach to extensions as set out in Policy DM01 is to minimise their impact 
on the local environment and to ensure that occupiers of new developments as well as 
neighbouring occupiers enjoy a high standard of amenity.  
 
Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies (Adopted) 2012 states that all 
development should represent high quality design and should be designed to allow for 
adequate daylight, sunlight, privacy and outlook for adjoining occupiers.  
 
Policy DM02 states that where appropriate, development will be expected to demonstrate 
compliance to minimum amenity standards and that development makes a positive 
contribution to the borough. The development standards set out in Policy DM02: 
Development Standards are regarded as key for Barnet to deliver the highest standards of 
urban design.  
 
Policy CS5 states that the Council 'will ensure that development in Barnet respects local 
context and distinctive local character creating places and buildings of high quality design'.   
 
The Council's adopted SPD 'Residential Design Guidance' (2013) states that extensions 
should normally be subordinate to the original house, respect the original building and 
should not be overly dominant; extensions should normally be consistent in regard to the 
form, scale and architectural style of the original building which can be achieved through 
respecting the proportions of the existing house and using an appropriate roof form. 
 
Para 14.13 of the SPD states that where there is a consistent and coherent architectural 
character, the extension should not detract from it. Any extension should sit comfortably 
with the main building and with neighbouring houses.  
 
The rear extensions, first floor side extension and garage conversion have recently been 
granted planning permission at committee level (ref: 15/00299/HSE dated 7th April 2015). 
The extensions are identical to the approved application and therefore these elements of 
the proposal iare considered acceptable. 
 
This application therefore is to assess the impact of the basement level. 

79



 
The proposal has been amended since first being submitted to remove the glass 
balustrades over the lightwells at the front of the property and replace them with flush 
metal grills which would not be visible from the streetscene. Given the limited visual 
manifestations of the basement from the streetscene and is considered that the basement 
would not significantly impact the proposal as previously approved and by reason of its 
siting would not have a detrimental impact on the visual or residential amenities of furture 
occupiers and neighbouring occupiers in particular regards to outlook and sunlight. The 
proposal is not deemed to adversely impact the character and appearance of the 
application site and streetscene. 
 
5.4 Response to Public Consultation 
 
Concerns in regards to the basement have been addressed above. 
 
Given that the extensions have already been granted planning consent, the concerns 
raised in regards to these have been addressed during the previous application and is was 
deemed the proposals were acceptable. 
 
6. Equality and Diversity Issues 
 
The proposal does not conflict with either Barnet Council's Equalities Policy or the 
commitments set in the Equality Scheme and supports the Council in meeting its statutory 
equality responsibilities. 
 
7. Conclusion 
 
Having taken all material considerations into account, it is considered that subject to 
compliance with the attached conditions, the proposed development would have an 
acceptable impact on the character and appearance of the application site, the street 
scene and the locality. The development is not considered to have an adverse impact on 
the amenities of neighbouring occupiers. This application is therefore recommended for 
approval. 

 

 

80


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	7 1 Langley Park London  NW7 2AA - 15/04278/HSE
	Site Plan - 1 Langley Park, London, NW7 2AA

	8 66 Uphill Road London NW7 4PU - 5/04704/FUL
	9 117-125 West Hendon Broadway London NW9 7BP - 15/00750/FUL
	10 42 Sevington Road London NW4 3RX - 15/04283/HSE
	11 36 Woolmead Avenue London NW9 7AY - 15/04227/HSE
	12 71 Vivian Avenue London NW4 3XE - 15/03894/FUL

